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Financial Highlights

Cash generated
Revenue from operations

+18.7% +15.2%
£51.243m £6.327m

(2009 - £43 165m) (2009 - £5 494rm)
Dividends pald
Basic EPS and proposed

+41.2% +10.1%
34.91p 17.40p

(2009 - 24 73p) (2009 - 15 80p)

Operational Highlights

» Record Group revenue

v

Strong sales growth from Spode and
Royal Worcester

» Growth across all 4 brands
» Strong overseas performance
» Launched over 250 new products in 2011
» 2 new refail outlets in the UK
2010 2009 Increase
£'000 £ 000 %
Revenue 51,243 43,165 187
Pre-tax profit before excephional items (note 5) 5.448 3,925 388
Pre-tax profit after excephional items (note 5) 5,249 3718 a1 2
Cash generated from operations 6,327 5,494 152
Basic earnings per share 34.91p 2473p 41 2
Dividends poid and proposed per shame in respect of the year (note 13) 17.40p 15 80p 101
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Portmeirion Group PLC is British, based in
Stoke-on-Trent. We are a significant force in the
homewares industry, a market leader in high
quality and innovatively designed tableware,
cookware, giftware and tabletop accessories.
Portmeirion Group encompasses four world
leading brands.

PICTURED Portmeirions
Botonic Garden

01

Our Governance

Our Financials

Shareholder Information



Portmeirion Group PLC
Report and Accounts 2010

Our Markets

Portmeirion Group sells its products
directly to retailers in the US and
the UK and through exclusive
distributors and agents in over 60
other countries around the world.
Its major markets are the US, the UK,
South Korea and Canada.

Overview
Portmeinon Greup specialises in the design, manufacture and supply of iInnovatively designed

guality ceramic and cother homeware products Our products include tableware, cookware and
qifts, as well as complernentary fems from placemats and coasters to vases and candles

Opertating in vaned market sectors from casual to formal dining with mid price to prestige
products, Portmernion Group 1s a significant force in the tableware and homewares industry

Details of our factary shops are shown on page B0 Worldwide stockists of our products can be
found on our website www portmeinongroup com

Portmeirion Group PLC has four exceptional brands:

Portrmeirion has an established reputation for From its beginning in 1776, Spade has epitomised
fashionable yet tmeless coltections of tableware inventive and sophisticated designs for generctions
and gifts of unique design The brand has continued A guintessentially Brihsh brand, Spode 1s known for
to develop and diversify from its early foundations its successful ranges of ¢lassic fableware Under
set down by its co-founder Susan Willams-Eilis in the Portmeinon Group ownership, the brand has

19605 seen substantial elements of its range returned fo

manufacture in England




Royal Worcester, established in 1751, 15 one of the
oldest English ceramic brands, renowned for the skill
and dextenty applied o its ranges With a nch English
hentage, the brand 1s well positioned to appeal to a
broad audience across a wealth of designs

Portmeirion Group PLC

Since 1933 Pmpernel has gathered a reputation

as the premier brand for placemats and coasters,
offenng unparalleled cheice and superor guality to
an ever demanding and trend conscious consumer
worldwide
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QOur Brands

Portmeirion

Portmeinon 1s committed to producing innovative
designs that sit comfortably with everyday Ife, as
epitamised by the famous Botanic Garden range
The diversity of tugh qualty products within the
Portmernon brand delivers not only beautiful designs
but practicality for modern living

Portmeinon range indwiduality comes to the fore in
award winning collechons such as Sophie Conran for

Portrmeinon, and continues into 2011 with new launches,

such as the well received Down Chorus ronge
Visit www.portmelirion.com
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Portmelrion Ranges

Botanic Blue, Botanic Garden, Botanic Roses, Crazy
Daisy, Dawn Chorus, Eden, Pomona, Secret Garden,
Sophie Conran for Portmeinion, The Holly and

The Ivy, The Snowman, The Very Hungry Caterpillar

and Watercolour

PICTURED Sophle Conran
for Portmelrion




O U I’ B rO n d S continued

Spode

With a nch hentage, the well established Spode
brand has a classic product porifolio that appeals
across generations and includes many favourtes
such as Blue Halian ond Christmas Tree

Under Portmeinon Group ownership, Spode ronges
confinue to flounsh with substantial iInvestment in
the brand Spode 1s well positioned to develop in
the premium sector of the market New ranges are

focused on modern day sophishcated entertaining,

aftuned to the needs of today’s consumer whilst
drawing on the impressive design archive within
the brand

Visit www.spode.com

Portmeilrion Group PLC

Spode Ranges
Asymmoetry, Baking Days, Blue ltalian, Biue Room,
Chnistmas Tree, Paddington Bear and Woodiand

Bone China Christmas Rose, Isabella, Kara, Nectar,

Petal Plahnum, Sophia, Stafford Flowers and Stafford
While

PICTURED Spodes
Chnstmas Tree
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Qur Brands contnued

Royal Worcester

From rts ongins 1n the heart of England, the Royal
Worcester brand epritormises the art of country

living that has appeal to consumers worldwide
Purchased by Porimeirion Group 1n 2009, the brand
encompasses popular ranges such as Classic White
and Evesham Gold that continue to thrive

New ranges, including the Royal Worcester mug
collections, llustrate a breadth of arhistic themes
whilst giftware elements will enhance the brand's
future development In 2011, the Royal Wedding will
be celebrated with two dishinct designs

Visit www.royalworcaster.com

Royal Worcester Runges
Classic White, Evesharm Gold, Painted Frurt and the
Royai Wedding Collsction

Bone China Connth Platinum, Howard Blue,
Holly Ribbons and Monaco Plahnum

Glassware Cirrus and Flow

PICTURED Reyal Worcester s
Evesham Gold
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OUI‘ BFG ndS continued

Pimpernel

Pirpernel continues to offer an unnivalied selection of  Pimparnel

qualty, exclusive, decorative placemat and coaster Placemats, coaslers, trays & accessones, mugs,
designs The range 1s growing within the home children’s dinnerware & cullery in an extensive array
accessoneas market with extensions into textile and of designs

tray sectors encompassing classic popular designs
from both Partmeinon Group brands and exclusive
licensed artweork A new calegory of children’s
melamine dinnerware uhlising the popular Enc
Carle's The Very Hungry Caterpillar design has proved
successtul, breaking new ground for the brand

PICTURED Pimpernels Farm
House shown with
Spode s Baking Days
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Business Review

"We are delighted to report another record

year with growth across

2010 was a year of opportunity and success for the
Portmeinon Group We had previously enjoyed record
revenues in 2009, and in 2010 we had ancther record
year growing revenues by 18 7% to £51 2 milion (2009
- a 35 6% increase o £43 2 million) We were able to
builld upon the acquistion of the Spode and Royal
Worcesier brands to further consolidate our position
as an infernationally renowned homewares group,
and our established Portmeinon and Pimpernel
brands also had record years

When we acquired the Spode and Royal Worcester
brands in Apnl 2009 we forecasted revenues of

£19 milion from these brands by the end of 2010, we
actually achieved revenues of £22 million dunng this
penod The acquisition cost of the Spode and Royal
Worcester brand names was £2 2 million

Dividend

The Board 1s recommending a final dwvidend of

13 80p. brnging the total paid and proposed for
the year to 17 40p, 10 1% higher than the total

pad In respect of 2009 The dividend will be paid,
subject to shareholders’ approval, on 25 May 2011
to shareholders on the register on 26 Apnl 2011
Dividends paid and proposed are covered 2 0 times
by earnings (2009 - 1 6 times), the Board considers
that such a level of cover 1s sustanable

Financial Highlights 20710

all four brands”

Results for the year

Revenues increased by 18 7% to £51 2 milon (2009
- £43 2 milion), this 1s the highest revenue figure ever
recorded by Portmeiron Group Within this 18 7%

nse the USA accounted for 9 2% and South Korea
provided 6 0% There was liffle effect from the US
dollar/sterling exchange rate UK sales suffered a

3 7% reducthon in revenues, reflecting the general
decline in UK retaill sales dunng 2010, particularly
durng the important Christmas season

The pre-excepfional profit before tax was £5 4 million,
an increase of 38 8%, (2009 - £3 9 milhion) and
pre-exceptonal EBITDA was £6 & milhon (2009 -~

£5 6 millon) Profit before tax was £5 2 million

(2009 - £3 7 million)

The most impeortant effect on profitability was
the increased revenues, with a large part of the
consequent gross margin feeding through to profit

We have faken the opportunity afforded by our
increased revenues to iIncrease our markehng and
product development spend to record levels, such
expenditure 15 an investment for future benefit

Revenue (£ 000) Pre-tax profit before Basic eamings per Dividends pald ond
exceptional items share (p) proposed per share in
(&'000) raspect of the year (p)
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Business Review contnued

Portmerrion Group PLC

PICTURED The Stoke-on-Trent showroorm was refurbished in 2010 to display the Group 5 brands and excellent

product range to best advantege

Our largest market 1s the United States which
accounts for 41% of our revenues (2009 - 40%). fcken
together with Canada thws means that North Amernca
accounts for 45% of our revenues (2009 - 44%) We
service the United States from a showroom and office
in New York and a warehouse in Connecticut The
Canadian market 1s handled by our Joint Venture
partner, Porimeaincn Canada Inc South Korea now
accounts for 19% (2009 - 17%) of our revenues, close
behind the UK at 25% (2009 - 30%)

250 products already
launched in 2011,
including a Royal

Wedding collection
from Royal Worcester

Balance Sheet

The Group has a strong cash position, we ended the
year with a net cash balance of £6 2 milion (2009 -
£4 4 million) The year end 1s close to being our high
point for cash In September and October the Group
had a small amount of net borrowings as stocks and
debtors peaked to support our sales to retallers for
the important Chnstmas frade We expect a similar
warking capital cycle in 2011

PICTURED Partmelron s
Botanic Garden
measuring spoons
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B usS i ﬂeSS ReVieW conhnued

Profit has clearly been an important factor in
Improving our cash balances Our stock holdings
have been well controlled, with an 18 7% increase In
revenues, stock levels have anly iIncreased by 9 9% to
£9 7 million Cur stock turnin 2010 was 2 6 which 1s a
significant improverment on 2009 (2 1) and also on
2008 (1 &)

The intangibles figure in our Balance Sheet of £2 0
million 1s mainly In respect of the acquisition of the
Spode and Royal Worcester brands, these balances
are being amortised over 10 years These two brand
names generated revenues of £13 5 milion in 2010
(2009 - £8 & million) and afthough they are already
two centuries old we consider that they sl have
many years of lIife ahead of them

The pension scheme deficit in the balance sheet,

N respect of the closed final sclary scheme, 1s £4 3
milher (2009 - £3 6 millon) We have made a cash
centribution to the scheme of €1 0 millton dunng the
year (2009 - £0 6 million) The deficit and the resulting
cash contnbution are burdens borne by the business
which are of no trading benefit o us They have
arisen because of varying actuanal assumptions, for
example on mortality, under performance of equity
investments and changes to tax legislation However,
the scheme deficit is closely monitored, controlled
ond affordable

Products

We are a customer attentive, design led business
Product development 1s key to our future, and
expenditure on this vital area now armounts to nearly
2% of revenues, this increase 1s as 1t should be In
2010 we introduced over 200 new lines into existing
patterns in all cur brands Botaruc Garden, first
launched in 1972, now generates revenues of some
£20 milhon per annurm

Our plans for the future iInclude increasing the spend
on product development In 2011 we have already
launched 250 new lines including six completely
new bone china potterns, and Paddington Bear as

a heensed range which will complement The Very
Hungry Caterpillar and The Snowman ranges

10

A st of our current patterns can be found within the
Our Brands section of this report on pages 4 fo 7, and
also at www portmeinon com, at www spode com
and at www royalworcester corn, these sites also hst
stockists and items that may be purchased online

Production

Our strategy 1s to obtain products from the most
appropriate source Our Stoke-on-Trent factory is
producing at its hughest aver levels, and our kilns
are how runring 24 hours a day, 7 days a week We
rmake fine earthenware in our Stoke factory - Botanic
Garden, The Holly & The Ivy, Pormona, Blue Italian
and Woodland - for which we have a worldwide
reputation We dao not make porcelain, stoneware
or bone china, these product ines are socurced
internationally to our exacting quality standards
Cur backstamps are guarantees of quality

Qur high current levels of production have inevitably
meant that costs have been subservient to volumes,
in the current year we are addressing these 1ssues

Sales and Marketing

Our sales reach s worldwide and we currently expaort
o over 60 countries In the USA, our largest market,
we have ocur own subsidiary company, our own
employees and our own showroom and warehouse
In Canada we operate with a joint venture pariner

In other major markets we operate together with
carefully selected leca! distrbutors Qur product
development 1s country specific

We invest heavily in national and international
homeware shows 1n the USA, the UK and Europe

In 2010 we enjoyed sales of £0 3 million in Russia
and €0 1 millon in China These opportunities for
new market growth remain part of our focus for
international market expansion

Pecople

We increased the average number of people
employed during the year to 532, a 9% increase on
the 487 employed in 2009 Sales per employee were
£96,321 for 2010, a 9% increcse on the 2009 figure

of £88,634 The increqse in sales per employee is @
reflechon of the growing added value in the business




Portmeirion Group PLC

Business Review continved

All employees, excluding the Nonexeculve Directors,  Quilook

participate 1n annuat Incenhve schemes and We remain confident for the future Our proven
these schemes paid out moxmum awards in 2010, strategy is 1o lead with design, ensure the quatity of
deservedly so the product. sell with professionalism, be consarvative

with our finances and nurture the brands
Heatth and safety, and ermployee welfare are a high

prionty in our business We will conimue to evaluate acquisition opportunihes
which we beliave will complement and strengthen
Risks the Group

The Report of the Directors on pages 14 and 15 ists

the prncipal risks which we consider the business is Whilst not necessanly an indication of full yaar

subject to, three of these risks anre worthy of further performance, revenues for the first two months of

discussion here 2011 are 15% above the corrssponding penod last
year The outlook for the remalnder of 2011 is positive

Our sales i US doliars are roughly equivalent to our

purchases in US dollars and our risk here is, therefore,

naturally hedged We also hove net receipts of

Canadian dollars, Euros and to a lasser degree

other European curencies We use forward curency .
contracts to hedge aganst rate movemaents on these % :
currencies where our exposure Is expected to be .

significant Richard Steele Lawrence Bryan
Non-executive Charman  Chief Executive

Our sourcing and our sales are worldwide, which

helps fo control our exposure to any one temtory.

howavar, we are vulnerable fo major shifts in the

United States, UK, South Korea and China

Producing ceramics requires eneargy. whether we
produce them curselves or have them produced

for us We have made great stades in reducing our
energy consumphon but we remain exposed to price
volatiify in the energy markets

11
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Board of Directors
Executive Directors

Lowrence Bryan
Chief Executive

Lawrence F.Bryan

Chief Executive

Lowrence Bryan 1s the Group's
Chief Executive and President of

Portmeinon USA He first joined the

Group In 1991, as Vice President,
Sales of Porimeirion USA, leaving
IN 1994 He rejoined the Group In
1997 as President of Portmeinon
USA. became a Director on

1 January 2000 and was
promoted io Chief Executive on
156 August 2001 His career in the

glass, ceramics and gift industry 1s

extensive He has previously held
the positions of Vice President,

Sales of Waterford Wedgwood USA,

President, Waterford Wedgwood
USA Retall and President of
International China Company

He 15 a Fellow of the Royal Society
of Arts
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Michael Haynes
Group Sales and
Marketing Director

Michael Haynes

Group Sales and Marketing Director
Michael Haynes 1s Group Sales &
Marketing Director He joined the
Group 1n 2004 and was apponted
to the Board in 2007 In addition

o sales and markehing he 1s also
responsible for all outsourced
products He has considerable
experence n the tableware and
glassware business His business
career In sales and markehng

has covered such diverse fields

as groceries, folletnes, cosmetics,
silverware, china and glass He

ran his own ¢consultancy business
for many years and helped
Portmeinon develop its Far East
business befare joining the Group

Breft Phillips
Group Finance Director
and Cormpany Secretary

Brett W.J. Phillips

Group Fnance Director and
Company Secrelary

Brett Philips 1s Group Finance
Director and Company Secretary
He joined the Group In 1988 He
15 responsible for all aspects of
financial control, Information
systems, and management
reporting, human resources.
intellectual property, legal and
company secretanal matiers

He represents the Group on

all subsidwary Boards, and 1s
Chairman of the Board of Furlong
Mills Limited




Board of Directors contnued
Non-executive Directors

Richard Steele
Non-executive Charrman

Richard J. Steele

Non-executive Chairman

Prior to being appointed Non-
execuhve Charrman, Dick Steele
was the Senior Non-executive
Director and 1s a Chartered
Accountant and a Member of
the Institute of Taxahon He has
spent ten years as Group Finance
Director of isted companies He

15 also Nomexecutive Chairman
of Bladon Castle Management
Lrmited, Country Baskets, Racoon
International Holdings Limited and
Rusland Management Limited

Board Committees
Audit Committee

R J Steele (Chairman)
J Kong

Lady Judge

Janis Kong
Norrexecutive Director

Janis Kong

Non-executive Director

Janis Kong 1s a Non-executive
Director of Kingfisher PLC,
VisitBritain and Network Rail. and
Chairrman of the Board of trustees
of Forum for the Future She was
previously a Nen-executive Director
of the Royal Bank of Scotland
Group PLC and 15 a former
Executive Charrman of Heathrow
Airport Lirmited, formerly Chairman
of Heathrow Express Limited and

a former member of the BAA plc
Board She holds an honorary
Doctorate with the Open University
and has recewved an OBE

Remuneration Committee
R J Steele (Chairman)

J Kong

Lady Judge

Portmeirion Group PLC

Barbara Thomas Judge
Non-executive Director

Lady Judge

Non-executive Direclor

Lady Judge 1s a lawyer,
international banker and
entrepreneur She 1is Chairman
of the Pension Protechon Fund
Formerly she was Chairman of
the UK Atomic Energy Authonty,
Deputy Charrman of the Schoaol
of Oriental and African Studies,
a Commussioner of the Uited
States Securities and Exchange
Commussion and an Executive
Director of News Intermational and
Samuel Moniagu plc

Nomination Commitee
R J Steele (Charrman)

J Konhg

Lady Judge

L F Bryan
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure In presenting their annual report on the affarrs of the Group, fogether with the
audited financial staternents of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings for the year ended 31 December
2010 The Corporate Governance Statement set out on pages 27 to 30 forms part of this repart

Principal achivities

The Group markets ceramic tablewars, cookware and giftware, glassware, candles, placemats, coasters and
other associated products, and manufactures ceramics There have been no changes in activities during
the year

The subsidiary and associated undertakings of the Group are listed 1n note ¢ of the notes fo the Company
Financial Statements on page 75

Business review

A tull review of the performance of the Group for the year 15 given In the section of the Business Review entitled
"Results for the year® on page 8 Current trading and the future are commented on in the "Cutlock” section of
Business Review, on page 11 That information 1s Incorporated into this report by reference and together with
the paragraphs that follow, compnse the business review required by the Companies Act 2006

Information about the use of financial instruments by the Company and 1is subsidianes 1s given in note 31 fo
fhe financial staternents

Results and dividends
The results for the year are set out on page 34 The movements on reserves are shown in notes 25 and 26

On 1 Cctober 2010 an intenm dividend of 3 90p (2009 - 3 55p) per share was paid on the ordinary share
capital The Directors recommend that a final dividend of 13 50p per share be paid (2009 - 12 25p), making a
fotal for the year of 17 40p (2009 - 15 80p) per share The final dividend will be paid, subject to shareholders’
approval, on 25 May 2011, to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 26 Aprl 2011

Key performance indicators

The Group Board use a range of performance measures to morutor and manage the business The Board
regards measures relating to the delivery of shareholder value as particularly impeortant These measures,
together with their comparatives, are shown in the financial highlights on the inside front cover of the
Report and Accounts There are alsc a number of non-inancial performance measures used to manage
the business These include customer service levels, ncidence of accidents ond new product delvery
performance

Research and development

The Group conhnues to research into methods of fackling the environmental 1ssues facing ¢ as a ceramics
manufacturer whilst improving manutacturing effictency The development of iInnovative new products and
designs Is a key part of the Group's strategy

Pnncipal risks and uncertainties

The Group Board constders the nisks to the business at every Board meeting It formally reviews and documents
the principal nsks to the business at least annually
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Report of the Directors continued

Principal nsks identified in addition fo those discussed in the Business Review on page 11 include

® Economic downturn - economic downturn is a nsk for the Group The Group monitors and maintains close
relationships with ifs key customers and suppliers to be able to identity signs of financial difficulties early
Sates frends in s major markets are constantly reviewed fo enable early achion to be taken in the event of
sales declining

& Competifor pressure - compehtor pressure 1s a confinuing nsk for the Group, which could result in losing
sales ta key competritors The Group manages this nisk by providing quality products and maintaining strong
relationships with s key cusiomers

® Relance on key suppliers - the Group's purchasing activities could expose 1t fo over reliance on certain
suppliers and inflationary pricing pressure To mitigate this. the Group seeks to ensure there 1s enough
breadth in its supplier base such that this nsk remains manageable

® Loss of key personnel - the loss of key personnel would present significant operational difficulties for the
Group Management seek to ensure that key personnel are appropnately remunerated to ensure that
good performance I1s recognised

Details of the Group's financial nsk management policies are included in note 31 on page é6

Going concern

The Group’s business achvities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance
and positicn are set out In the Business Review on pages 8 fo 11 In addihion, note 31 1o the financial
sfatements includes the Group's financial nsk management olbyjectives, details of its financial iInstruments and
hedging activities and its exposures to credit nisk and guidity nisk

At 31 December 2010, the Group had a net cash balance of £6 2 milhon and an unused bank facility with
avallable funding of £4 million it manufactures approximately half of its products and sources the other half
from third party suppliers The Group sells into a number of different markets worldwide and has a spread

of custamers within its major UK and US markets Consequently. the Directors believe that the Group 1s well
placed to manage its business nsks successfully despite the continuing uncertain economic outlook

After making enquines, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have
adequate resources to continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly. they continue
to adopt the going concern basis In prepanng the annual report and accounts

Directors and their interests

The Directors of the Company, who served throughout the year, are listed on pages 1210 13 together with
biographical and comrittee membership details Lady Judge and R J Steele will refire at the Annual General
Meeting to be held on 18 May 2011 in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association Lady Judge
and R J Steele, being ehgible, are offenng themselves for re-election The Board has formally reviewed the
performance of these Directors and concluded that they remain effectve and are committed to therr roles at
Portmeinon Group FLC

Further details on the composihion of the Board and appointment of Directors 1s given in the Corporate
Governance Statement on pages 27 o 30

Our Governance Qur Performance
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RepOFT Of The Dil’eCTOI'S continued

The Directors who held office at 31 December 2010 had the following beneficial interests in the share caprtal
of the Company
At 31 Decomber 2010 At 31 December 2009

5p ordinary shares Sp ordinary shares

Beneficial Beneficial

L F Bryan 202,000 179,144
M Haynes 25,000 15,000
Lady Judge 5,000 5,000
J Kong 5,000 5.000
B W J Phillips 40,455 30.455
R J Stecle 20,000 20,000

Directors’ share interests include the interests of their spouses, cvil partners and infant children, or stepchildren
as required by Section 822 of the Companies Act 2006 There were no changes in the beneficial interests of
the Directors in the Company’s shares between 31 December 2010 and 22 March 2011

Details of Directors’ share options are provided in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 25 and 26
Details of transachons with Directors and other related parties are to be tound i note 29 on page 62

Directors’ iIndemnities
The Company has qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its Directors which remain in
force at the date of this report

Caprtal structure

Details of the share capital in 1ssue, together with detalls of the movements in the Company's 1ssued share
caprtal dunng the year are shown in note 24 The Company has one class of ardinary shares which carry no
nght to fixed income Each share cames the right to one vote at general meetings of the Company

There are no specific restnchions on the size of a holding nor on the transter of shares, which are bath
govermned by the general provisions of the Articles of Association and prevailing legislation The Directors are
not aware of any agreements between holders of the Company’s shares that may result in restrictions on the
transfer of secunties or on voting nghts

Details of employee share schemes are set ocut In notes 24 and 32

No person has any special nghts of control over the Company’s share caprtal and allissued shares are
fully paid

With regard fo the appointment and replacement of Directors, the Company 1s governed by its Arhicles of
Associahon, the Companies Act 2006 and related legislation The Articles themselves may be amended by
special resoluhon of the shareholders The powers of Diectors are described in the Corporate Governance
Statement on poge 27
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Report of the Directors contnued

Substantial shareholdings
In addition to the Directors’ interests notified above, the Company had been notified of the following beneficial
inferests in 3% or more of its 1ssued share caprtal excluding treasury shares as at 22 March 2011 as follows

Percentoge of

vohing nghts and Number of

issued share capital  ordinary shares

New Fortress Finance Holdings Ltd BVi* 27 94% 2,795,000
Trustees of Caroline Fulbnght Settlement* 14 36% 1,436,195
Euan Cooper-Willis 8 86% 886,150
Shahrzad Farhadi 6 32% 632,333
Kamrouz Farhad) 5 63% 562,917
Trustees of Second Carohne Fulbright Settlement* 3 56% 356,077

* Shareholding held indirectly through a nominee All other holdings are direct holdings

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held at the registered office of the Company af London Road, Stoke-on-
Trent, on 18 May 2011 at 12 00 noan (the “2011 AGM”) All ordinary and special resolufions to be proposed
at that meehng are detalled 1n the Notice of Annual General Meeting As special business at the 2011 AGM,
the following resclutions will be proposed together with the resolution described below regarding market
purchases of the Company’s shares

® Authonty to allot shares - under section 551 of the Companies Act 2006, the Directors of a Company
may only allot urissued shares or any nghts to subscribe for or to convert any secunty info shares In the
Company if authonsed to do so The resolution giving authority to allot shares, If passed., will continue to
provide fiexibility for the Directors to act in the best interests of shareholders, when opportunihes arse, by
1ssuing new shares, and replaces the authanly given at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held
on 20 May 2010 The authonty will allow the Directors to allot new shares up to a nominal value of £1466,713,
approximately equcil fo a third of the present 1ssued share capital excluding treasury shares as at 22 March
2017 The Directors have no current intenhion of exercising this authorty except in relation fo the allotment
of shares under the share option schemes

® Disapplication of pre-emption nghts - if equity secunties are to be adllotted for cash, sechon 561(1) of
the Companies Act 2006 requrres that those equity secunties are offered first to existing shareholders in
proportion to the number held by them at the hme of the offer and otherwise In comphance with the
fechrucal requirements of that Act Those pre-emphion provisions also apply to the sale of treasury shares
by the Company However, it may be in the interests of the Company for the Direclors to allot shares and/
or sell treasury shares other than to shareholders in proportion fo their existing holdings or otherwise
than strictly iIn compliance with those requirements This resolution would allow the Directors, pursuant to
sechion 570 and sechon 5§73 of the Companies Act 2006, fo alict shares and to sell treasury shares for cash
without first offering them to shareholders In accordance with that Act The authonty 1s imited to the 1ssue
of equrty securthes and/or sale of treasury shares for cash up to a maximum nominal amount of £50,014,
which is equivalent to 10 per cent of the total 1ssued ordinary share capital of the Company excluding
treasury shares as ot 22 March 2011, and allotments of equity securities and/or sale of treasury shares in
connection with a nghts issue or other offer 1o shareholders The authority s In accordance with guidelines
1ssued by the National Association of Pension Funds
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Acquisition of the Company’s own shares

The Company did not purchase any of its own shares dunng the year The Company holds 560,218 treasury
shares, purchased at an average cost of 187p per share At the end of the year, the Directors had authonty,

under a shareholders” resolution of 20 May 2010, to purchase through the market 991,995 of the Company’s
ordinary shares This authonty expires on 30 June 2011

The Directors beheve that it i1s in the interests of the Company and its members 1o continue to have the
flexibility to purchase its own shares and resolution 9 of the 2011 AGM seeks authonty from members to

allow the Company to make market purchases, subject to the restrictions set out In the Notice of Annual
General Meeting, and in parhicular to the maximum number of ordinary shares that may be purchased being
1.000.281. approximately equal to 10% of the issued share capital of the Company excluding treasury shares
as at 22 March 2011 The Directors intend to renew this cuthonty annually but only fo exercise the authority
where, after considenng market conditions prevailing at the time, the investment needs of the Company., its
opportunities for expansion and its overall financial position, they beleve the effect of such exarcise would be
to increase the earnings per share and be In the best interests of shareholders generally

Environment

The Group recagnises the importance of its environmental respensibilities, monitars its impact on the
environment, and destgns and implements policies to reduce damage that might be caused by the Group’s
activiies Inihatives designed to reduce the Group's impact on the environment include safe disposal of
manufactured waste, racycling and reducing energy consumption

During 2010, the Group completed a ten year Cimate Change Agreement achieving a rebate on the Climate
Change Levy in return for reducing our Specific Energy Consumption by more thon 30% Over the ten year
period, the Group reduced Specific Energy Consumption by 46 4% and Total Energy Consumption by 38 8%

Employees’ involvement
The Group recognises the importance of good communications with its employees and considers that the
most effective form of communication regarding its activities, performance and plansis by way of iInformal

daily discussions between management and other employees Duning 2010, to complement these discussions,

the Group has confinued communicafing information from Board level to all employees on a regular basis via
¢ programme of team bnefings

Share option and profit related incentive schemes are operated to encourage the involvement of employees
in the Group’s performance Portmeincn Group UK Limited, the employer of the Group’s UK based employees,
is an Investor in People The Direclors are committed o the continuing development of the Group’s employees
via the principles of Investors In Pecple See note 8 on page 50 for staff numbers and costs

Employment of disabled persons

It 15 the Group s policy to give disabled pecple full and farr consideration for all job vacancies for which they
offer themselves as suitable candidates, having regard fo therr particular aptitudes and abilities, including
the considerahion of any reasonable adjustments to the job or workplace Training and career development
cpportunthes are avallable to all employees and if necessary all efforts are made to re-train any member of
staff who develops a disability during employment with the Group
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Creditor payment policy

Payment terms are agreed with each of the Group’s major suppliers The Group abides by these terms
provided that the supplier also complies with the agreed terms and conditions The policy for other supphers s
generally to make payment by the end of the month following receipt of a valld invoice All payment terms are
stated at the time orders are placed The number of days purchases represented by trade creditors at

31 December 2010 was 41 (2009 - 42) The Company has no trade creditors

Financial position
The Group's net funds {cash and cash equivalents less borrowings) at 31 December 2010 were £6 2 million
(2009 - £4 4 million)

Charitable and polihcal contributions

Contnbutions to vanous chanties in the form of goods to be used for charitable raffles amounted to £2,164
(2009 - £2,138) at cost dunng the year In addition cash donations of £1,000 (2009 - £1,250) were made to
registered charhes There were no poliical contnbutions dunng the year

Auditors
Each of the persons who 1s a Director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

(1) so far as the Director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's guditors are
unaware, and

{2)the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought fo have taken as a Director In order to make himsetf/
herself aware of any relevant audit informathon and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of
that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Mazars LLP have expressed their willingness to continue In office as audrtors and @ resolution to reappoint
them will be proposed at the forthcorming Annual General Meeting

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board

Company Secretary
22 March 2011
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Introduchon

As a Company listed on the Alternative Investment Market (AlM), the Company 1s not required to comply with
Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (accounts and reports) Regulattons

2008 (the "Regulations™) under the Companies Act 2006 (the "Act™) Whilst the Company 1s not required to
comply with the Regulohions, it has used the Regulahions as best practice gudance and voluntanly presented
disclosures that reflect the extent of the Compony's application of the Regulations A resolution to approve this
report will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company ot which the financial statements will
be approved

Remuneration committee

The members of the Remuneration Committee dunng 2010 are set out on poge 13 RJ Steele 1s Chairman

of the Remuneraticn Committee There have been no changes in the composition or Chairmanship of the

Remuneration Committee dunng the yeor None of the Committee has any personal financial interest (other

than as shareholders), conflicts of inferest ansing from cross directorships or day to day involvement in running

the business The Committee makes recommendations to the Board No Director plays a part in any discussion !
about his or her own remuneration

Dunng 2010, Pinsent Masans LLP provided adwvice on the implementation of The Portmeinon Group 2010
Deferred Incentive Share Ophon Plan for Executive Directors In determining the Directors’ remuneration for the
year, the Commitiee consulied L F Bryan, Chief Executive, aboud its proposals

The Committee meets at least twice a year to review and determine the remuneration of the Executive
Drrectors During 2010, the Commitee met twice in addition, the Commitiee held meetings at other times
throughout the year to deal with share option awards and exercises

Remuneration policy

Executive remuneration packages are prudently designed to attroct, motivate and retain Directors of high
calibre and ta reward them for enhancing value to shareholders The periermance megsurement of the
Executive Directors and the determination of therr annual remuneration package 1s undertaken by the
Remuneration Committee The remuneration of the Non-executive Directors 1s determined by the Executive
Directors There are five main elements of the remuneration package for Exacuhive Directors and servor
management

Basic annual salary and benefits,
Annual incentive payments,
Share ophion iIncentives,
Long-term incentives, and
Pension arrangemenits

The Company's policy is that a substantial proportion of the remuneration of the Executive Directors should be
performance related in order to encourage and reward maximising business performance and shareholder
retums In determining the remuneration arrangements for Executive Directors the Committee 1s sensrtive to
pay and employment condifions elsewhere in the Group, especially when determining base salary increases
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Executrve Directors are entitled to accept appointments outside the Group providing that the Chairman

gronis his permission

The following table provides a summary of the key elements of the remuneration package

Purpose

Operation

Base salary To provide competitive fixed
remuneration that will aftract ond
retain key employees and refiect ther
experence and posifion in the

Group

Reviewed annually taking intfo account
industry standard executive remuneration
and pay levels elsewhere within the Group

Annual incentive  Recognises achievement of annual
objechves which support the short fo

medium term strategy of the Group

Based on achievement of a demanding
profit before tax and exceptional tems target

Share Ophon
Scheme

Setting value creation through share
price growth as a major objective to
Executive Directors and senior
managers Alignment of option
holder interests with those of
shareholders through the delivery

of shares

Subyject to eamnings per share ("EPS™) performance
measurement to reflect cperational performance
as EPS is a significant factor in determining the
market’s view of the Group’s value

Deferred Incentive Incentivising and refaining Executive

Share Option Plan Directors whilst aligning their interests
with those of shareholders through
dehvery and retenhon of shares

Discretionary award over shares not exceeding
a market value of 20% of the gross annual
Incentive payment earned by the Executive
Director in respect of the previous financial year

Pension Providing post retirement benefits

The Group operates defined contrbuton pension
schemes Previous money purchase plans and
defined benefit pension schemes have been frozen,
1 e closed with preserved benefils

Basic salary and benefits in kind

Sclary 1s normally reviewed annually, on 1 January, or when responsibilities change In deciding the
appropnate levels, the Committee fakes into account factors which it considers necessary including industry
standard executive remuneration and comparable pay levels within the Group Each Executive Director is
provided with health care benefits The Chief Executive 15 provided with a car

Annuai incentive payments

Each Executive Director’s remuneraticn package includes an annual incentive payment If the profit before tax
and excephonal tems exceeds an annual target, then an incentive will be paid The incenhive 1s a percentage
of the Execuhve Director’s basic pay which is inked to the amount by which profit before tax and excephonal
items exceeds the target The maximum incentive payable 1s 100% of basic salary For 2010, maximum
incentives were earned

Demanding budgets and targets are established by the Board and reviewed at the end of each yeor to
determine the degree of successful achievement

Share options

The Company’s pelicy Is to grant ophions to Directars at the discretion of the Committee taking info account
indwvidual performance It 1s the Company’s policy to phase the granting of share ophons rather then fo award
therm in a single large block to any indwidual
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Share ophions continued
The Caompany has a share option scheme, The Partmernion 2002 Share Option Scheme ("2002 Share Option
Scheme™)

Earnings per share has been selected as a measure of performance as it directly reflects operahonal
performance and is also a significant factor in determirung the market's view of the Group's value The
following performance critena are applicable to cuistanding options

@ Options granted under the 2002 Share Ophon Scheme on 4 April 2007 could normally only be exercised
if the basic earnungs per share of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 wara more than
20% higher than the basic earnings per share of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2006 This
performance measure was achieved,

@ Options granted under the 2002 Share Optton Scheme an 15 Aprnl 2008 can nermally only be exercised
where the pre-fax, pre-exceptional earnings per share of the Group for the year ending 31 December 2010
exceeds 41 63p, being 120% of the pre-tax, pre-excephonal earnings per share of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2007 This performance critena has now been met,

® Options granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme on 28 May 2009 can normally be exercised if the
average of the pre-tax, pre-excephonal earnings per share of the Group for eqch of the three years ending
31 December 2009, 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2011 exceeds 16 06p. being 113% of the pre-dax.
pre-excephonal earnings per share for the year ended 31 Decemibber 2008,

® Options granted under the 2002 Share Ophon Scheme on 29 March 2010 can normally be exercised if the
average of the pre-tax, pre-excephonal earnings per share of the Group for each of the three years ending
31 December 2010, 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012 exceeds 44 71p, being 113% of the pre-tax,
pre-excephonal earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2009

Long-term incentive schemes

The Company introduced The Portmeinon Group 2010 Deferred Incentive Share Option Plan (the 2010
Deferred Incentive Plan”™) dunng the year following shareholder approval at the AGM in May 2010 The
Plan was established to incentivise and retain Executive Directors and encourage them o acquire and
retain shares in the Company The Plan operates in conjunction with the Group's existing annual iIncentive
arrangements

The 2010 Deferred Incentive Plan permits the grant of an ophon to a participant in any year over shares with
a market value not exceeding 20 per cent of the gross iIncentive earned by the relevant employee 1In respect
of the previous financial year Options are exercisable normally only after the third anniversary of the date of
grant On exercise, provided that the participant is stll employed by the Group (or has lefi due to imited good
leaver provisions as stated in the rules of the 2010 Deferred Incentive Plan) the parhcipant will be enhitled to
receive a "grossed-up” payment {1 @ a payment which after discharge of necessary taxes (Including National
Insurance contribuhions) leaves a net amount) sufficient to pay the taxes (including National Insurance
contrnbuhons) due In respect of the exercise of the ophon (subject to o cap on the maximum tax and
National Insurance rates covered) The Remuneration Committee believes this payment 1s apprepnate so

as to ensure that the shares are acquired without any need to sell the shares to generate cash to cover tax
habithes Ophons may be satisfied by an 1ssue of shares (including out of treasury)

Ophons under the 2010 Deferred Incentive Plan can only be granted to the extent perfformance targets

relating to the annual Incentive payment arrangements are met The exercise of ophons granted under the
2010 Deferred Incenhive Plan, are not, therefore, subject to the satisfachon of performance targets
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Pensicns

Breft W J Phillps and Michael Haynes are members of the Portrmeinon Potteries Group Stakehalder Pension
Plan, a defined contribution scheme Detalls of contributions paid by the Group into the Pian for the benefit of
the Directors are shown in the Directors’ emoluments table that follows

©n 31 October 2002 the Portmeinon Potienes Pension Plan, a contracteddn money purchase occupational
pension plan, closed Brett WJ Phillips was @ member of the plan ot that ime and holds preserved benefits
On 5 April 1999, the defined benefit UK pension scheme was frozen, 1 e closed to new entrants and to future
accrual Brett W.J Phillips was a member of the scheme at that me and holds preserved benefits

Lawrence F Bryan receives pension contributions for a money purchase pension operated by the Group in
the United States Annual performance related incentives are not subject to contributions by the Group to the
money purchase pension arrangements mamtained for the Directors

Directors’ contracts
It 1s the Company’s polcy that Executive Directors should have contracts with an indefinite term providing for a

maximum of one year's notice

The details of the Executive Directors’ confracts are summarnised in the table below

Date of Notice

Contract Pertod

L F Bryan 08 11 2002 12 months
M Haynes 01 01 2007 12 months
BWJ Phillips 15 03 2000 12 months

In the event of early termunation, the Drrectors’ contracts provide for compensation of an amount equal to the
gross salary and benefits that the executive would have received during the balance of the notice penod.,
plus any incentive once declared, to which he would hove become entitlied had contractual notice been
given

Lady Judge and R J Steele are proposed for re-elechon at the next Annual General Meeting They both have
contracts which provide for a notice penod of twelve months

Non-executive Directors

All Nonexecutive Directors have service contracts with an indefinite term providing for @ maximum of one
year's notice, without hability for compensation Therr remuneration 1s determined by the Board taking into
account therr duhes and the level of fees paid to Non-executive Directors of sirmilar companies The Non-
executive Directors do not participate in the Company's annual incentive, share opfion or longterm incentive
schemes and no pension contnbutions are made in respect of them

Aggreqate Directors’ remuneration
The total amounts for Directors’ remuneration were as follows

2010 2009

< <

Emoluments 1,425,371 1,198,740
Money purchase pension contributions 46,382 41,525
1,471,753 1,240,265
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Directors’ emoluments

Gains
made on
exercise Pengion
Salary of share contr- 2010 2009
& foes Benefits Incenhve optiens Subtotal butions Total Total
£ £ £ £ £ £ € £
Executive
L F Bryanih 297 658 16,755 297.658 17142 632,213 14,807 647,020 544,309
M Haynes 150,000 4,243 150,000 19,500 323,743 10,125 333,868 271,558
B'WJ Phillips 165,000 6,165 165,000 6,250 342,415 21,450 363,865 3156.398
Non-executlve
Lady Judge® 26,000 - - - 26,000 - 26,000 22,500
J Kong 24,000 - - - 26,000 - 26,000 22,500
R J Steele® 75,000 - - - 75,000 - 75,000 64,000
739,658 30.163 612,658 42,892 1,425,371 46,382 1,471,753 1,240,265
Notes

M LF Bryan 1is remunerated in US doliars and his remuneration is translated into stering at the average
exchange rate for the year in 2010 This was $1 5454/€ (2009 - $1 5659/%)

@ The remuneration for Lady Judge was made to BT Consulting Inc Limited in respect of her services

@ The remuneration for R J Steele was made fo Adsum Limited in respect of his services

The benefits shown above anse from the provision of a company car, Iife assurance, permanent disability
insurance and prnvate medical nsurance

Directors' pension enhtlements
Brett WJ Phillips 1s 0 memicer of the Group’s defined benefit pension scheme which was frozen on 5 April 1999
He had accrued entilements under the scheme as follows

Decrease in
Accrued accrued Accrued
pension at penston In pension at
010110 the year 31.12.10
g £ £
BWJ Phillips 23,679 (216) 23,463

Notes

1 Inflation has been taken fo be -1 4% for the purposes of adjusting last year’s accrued pension in excess of
Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP), being the fall in the Retail Prices Index for the relevant perniod, with
GMP subject fo fixed increases of 6 25% pa

2 The pension accrued to 31 December 2010 allows for the ¢cessahon of benefit accrual on 5 Apnl 1999 Only
statulory revaluation has been allowed from that date
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His accrued benefits under the scheme were as follows

Increase
Transfer in transfer Transfer
value ot value in value at
010110 the year 31.12.10
& g [
BWJ Phillips 477,345 78,221 555,566

Notes

1 The transfer values were calculated on a basis in accordance with the Occupational Penston Schemes

(Transfer Values) Regulations 1996 (81 1994/1847)

2 Inthe calculahon of the transfer values above, It is assumed that the Scheme will have adopted

amendments o 1its Rules replacing previous HMRC lirruts with the allowances facilitated by the Finance Act

2004 by the time the transitional penod ends on 5 Apnl 2011

Directors’ share ophions and long term incentives

Aggregoate emoluments disclosed above do not iInclude any amounts for the value of options to acquire

ordinary shares in the Company granted to or held by the Directors

Detaills of options held under the 2002 Share Option Scheme by Directors who served dunng the year are

as follows
Number of Options Dates on
At At Exercise which exercisable

Birector 010110 Granted  Exercised Surrendered 31.12.10 Price Earliest Latest
LF Bryan 80,000 - 22,856 - 57,144 3450p 01042010 03042011
L F Bryan 38.000 - - - 38,000 2600p 16042011 14042012
L F Bryan 70.000 - - - 70,000 197 5p 29052012 2705209
L F Bryan - 70,000 - - 70,000 3745p 30032013 28032020
M Haynes 55,000 - 10.000 - 45,000 3450p 01042010 03042011
M Haynes 24,000 - - - 24,000 2600p 16042011 14042012
M Haynes 45,000 - - - 45,000 197 5p 29052012 27 052019
BW.J Philips 55,000 - 10,000 - 45,000 3450p 01042010 0304 201
BWJ Philips 24,000 - - - 24,000 26000p 16042011 14042012
BWJ Philips 45,000 - - - 45,000 197 5p 29052012 27052019
BW.J Phillips - 45,000 - - 45,000 3745p 30032013 28032020

Notes

1 The performance critena attaching to share options are detalled on page 22
2 The Company's share price reached a high of 550p and a low of 305p during 2010 The average share

pnce during 2010 was 386 11p The share pricg on 31 December 2010 was 530p
3 There have been nc changes to the Directors’ interests in the shares or ophions over shares of the Company

between 31 December 2010 and 22 March 2011
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Detlails of the options exercised under the 2002 Share Option Scheme dunng the year are as follows

Number of Market Galns on Gains on

Date of options Exercise pnce on exerclse exercise

Director exercise  exercised price exercise 2010 2009
BWJ Phillips 01 04 2010 10.000 345 0p 407 5p £6,250 -
L F Bryan 2804 2010 22,856 345 0p 420 0p £17.142 -
M Haynes 22122010 10,000 345 0p 540 0p £19,500 -

Details of options held under the 2010 Deferred Incentive Plan by Directors who served during the year are as

follows
Number of options Dates on
At At which exercisable

Dwector Q1 Q110 Granted  Exercised Surrenderad 313210 Eariest Latest
L F Bryan -~ 13,664 - - 13.654 28052013 25082013
M Haynes - 6,948 - - 6,948 28052013 25082013
BW.J Phillips - 7.750 - - 7,750 28052013 25082013
Notes

1 The exercise pnce payable by the ophon holder fo acquie shares upon the exercise of o 2010 Deferred
Incentive Plan ophion 1s £1 In respect of all of the shares under ophion for that particular award
2 There were no aptions exercised under the 2010 Deferred Incentive Plan dunng the year

Approval

This report was appreved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

/;?

B W.J, Phillips
Company Secretary
22 March 2011
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As a Company listed on the Alternative Investment Market (AIM) the Company is net required to adhere to
the Combined Code on Corporate Governance June 2008 (the *Code™) nor the UK Corporate Governance
Code June 2010 (the "2010 Code™) (which will apply for compantes with accounting penods beginning an or
after 29 June 2010) Whilst the Company 1s not required to comply with the Code, it has used the Code ds best
practice guidance and voluntarily presented disclosures that reflect the extent of the Company’s application
of the Code

The Board

The Company Is controlled by the Board of Directors The Board comprises three Executive and three Non-
executive Directors The Board considers, after careful and ngorous review, that the Non-executive Directors
bring an independent jJudgement to bear The Board has considered the need for progressive refreshing of
the Board in formulating this view All Norrexecutive Drectors have contracts which expire on the completion
of one year's notice These are available for Inspechon at the Company's registered office and at the Annual
General Meeting All Drrectors retire no later than at the third annual general meeting of the Company after
the general meeting at which he/she was appointed or last reappointed In accordance with the Company's
Articles of Association and the principles of the Code The Board does not beliave It 1s necessary for Non-
executive Directors of the Company who have served more than nine years to offer themselves for re-election
annually All Directors undergo a performance evaluation before being proposed for reelection to ensure therr
performance continues to be effective, that where appropnate they mamtain ther independence and that
they are demonstrating continued commitment to the role

Richard J Steele. the Nonrexecutive Chairman., 1s responsible for the running of the Board and Lawrence F
Bryan, the Chief Executive, has executive responsibility for runming the Group’s business ond implementing
Group strategy Following the appointment of Richard J Stesle as Non-executive Chairman on 30 Apnil 2007,
the Board has not appointed a Senior Non-executive Director The Board believes that, given its size, there 1s
sufficient cpportunity for shareholders to raise any concerns they may have with the Non-executive Chairman,
Chief Execuhve, Group Finance Director or the other two Non-executive Directors The Beard meets atf least six
times each year and has a formal schedule of matters reserved to it It 1s responsible for overall Group strategy.
approval of mojor capital expenditure projects, approval of the annual and intenm results, annual budgets,
dividend policy. and Board structure I monitors the exposure to key business risks and reviews the strategic
direction of all frading subsidianes, their annual budgets, ther performance 1n relation fo those budgets and
therr capital expenditure

All Directors receve regular and timely information cn the Group’s operational and financial performance
Relevant information 1s circulated o the Directors in advance of meetings In addition, minutes of the meehngs
of the Directors of the main UK subsidiary are circulated to the Group Board of Directors All Directors have
direct access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary and are able to fake independent
professionat advice in the furtherance of therr duties, If necessary, at the Company’s expense
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The following fable shows the atiendance of the Directors at meetings of the Board and ts principal
comrmittees during 2010

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Commitiee Committee
Total mestlings held 6 3 2 1
Mestings attended
R J Steele (Non-executve Chairman) 6 3 2 1
L F Bryan (Chief Executive) 6 3+ - 1
M Haynes (Group Sales and Marketing Director) 6 3* - 1*
Lady Judge (Norn-executive) 4 2 2 1
J Kong (Non-executive) 6 3 2 1
B WJ Phillips (Group Finance Director) 6 3° - 1°
Notes

During the year additional Board and Remuneration Committee meetings were held and attended by a duly
authonsed committee of members of the Board principally fo discuss share ophon matters
* Meetings which the Director attended, in whole ar in part, by invitahon

Dunng the year the Board carned out an evaluation of its own performance The evaluation was based on the
guidance included in Suggestions for Good Prachce from the Higgs Report The Board concluded that it had
performed effectively Durning the year appropnate appraisals were carned out with the Directors The Group
Finance Director and Group Sales and Marketing Directer were appraised by the Chief Executive who, in turn,
was appraised by the Charrman Additionally, the Chairman appraised the Non-executive Directors and they
appraised the Chairman

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee 15 chared by Richard J Steele and comprises all the Non-executive Directors
and the Chief Executive 1t leads the process and makes recommendations to the Board on all new Board
appointments It meets of least once a year and also considers the re-election of Directors retinng by rotation
The Company’'s Articles of Associahion require that each Director shall submit himself/herself for re-elechion
every three years No Directors are exernpt from retirement by rotation

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee 1s chaired by Richard J Steele and compnses all the Non-executive Directors The
Board considers ¢ appropnate that Richard J Steele with his expenence and expertise in thus area chaws thus
committee The Remuneration Committee 1s responsible for making recommendations to the Beard in relation
to all aspects of remunerahon for Executive Directors The Remuneration Commitiee believes that the presence
of the Chief Execufive 15 important when determining the remunerahion of the other Execuhve Directors The
Chuet Executive does not participate in discussions relating to his personal remuneration In framing s policy
the Remuneration Committee fakes into account any factars which it deems necessary. Including industry
standard execufive remuneration, differentials between executive and employee remuneration and differentials
between executives When designing schemes of performance related remuneration the Remuneration
Committee considers the provisions in Schedule A fo the Code The remuneration of the Non-executive Directors
15 determined by the Executive Directors
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Corporate Governance Statement continuea

Audit Commitiee

The Audit Commitiee 1s chaired by Richard J} Steele and compnses all the Non-executive Direciors The

Board considers it appropnate that Richard J Steele with his experience and expertise in this area charrs

this committee The Audrt Committee meets at least twice each year It considers any matter relating to the
financial affars of the Group and fo the Group's external audii that it determines fo be desirable In particutar
the Commitiee averviews the monitonng of the adequacy of the Group's Infernal controls, accounting policies
and financial reporfing and provides a forum through which the Group’s external auditors report to the Non-
executive Directors

The Audit Committee reviews arrangements by which employees of the Group may, In confidence. raise
concemns about possible improprieties In matters of financial reporting or other matters. so seeking fo ensure
that appropneate arrangements are in place for the proportionate and independent inveshgahon of such
concermns and for appropniate follow-up achion

Internal control
The Board acknowledges that it 1s responsible for the Group’s system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness

An ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant nsks faced by the Group has
been in place throughout the financial year and has remamed in place up to the approval date of the report
and accounts That process Is regularly reviewed by the Board and accords with the infernal control guidance
published in October 2005 (the Turnbull Guidance)

The Board intends to keep its nsk control procedures under constant review particularly with regard to the
need to embed internal control and nsk management procedures further into the operahons of business,
both in the UK and overseas, and fo deal with areas of improvement which come to management’s and the
Board's attention

As might be expected in a Group of this size, a key control procedure is the day to day supervision of the
business by the Executive Directors, supported by the senicr managers with responsibility for key operahons

The Executive Directors are involved in the budget seting process, constantly monitor key performance
incicators and review management accounts on a monthly basis, noting and investigating major vanances
Al significant capital expenditure decisions are approved by the Board as a whole

The Group's significant nsks, together with the relevant control and monitaring procedures, are subject fo
regular review to enable the Board to assess the effectiveness of the systern of internal control The adequacy
of internal controls with regard to the nsks identified are reviewed at every Board meeting The Board has also
specifically reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s infernal financial controls Durning the course of its reviews
the Board has not identified nor been advised of any fallings or weaknesses which it has determined o be
significant

The Board has considered the need for an internal audit function, but has decided that, because of the size
of the Group and the systems and controls in place. it 1s not approprate ot present The Board will review this
on a regular basis

The Group's system of internal control 15 designed to identdy fraud or matenal error and manage rather than

eliminate the nsk of fallure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against matenal misstaterment or loss

29

QOur Performance

Qur Governance

Our Financials

Shareholder Information



Portmeirion Group PLC
Report and Accounts 2010

Corporate Governance Statement contnued

Fees paid to the auditors for non-audit services are disclosed in note 9 on page 50

Conflicts of Interest

In ine with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Directors have put in place a policy and process
for nottying and recording the nature and extent of therr iInterests, together with those of connected persons,
In organisations and compantes outside the Group Each Directar must formally notify the Compary if there 1s
the potenhal for these interests to conflict with therr duties as a Director of the Company All such notificohons
are regularly reviewed by the Board

Relations with shareholders

The Group encourages two way communications with bothits insttutional and private Investors and responds
quickly to all quenes received The Chairman talks regularly with the Group's major shareholders and ensures
that therr views are communicated fully to the Board All shareholders receive notice of the Annual General
Meeting (CAGM™) at which the charrmen of all Committees will be avallable for questions

The Board recognises the AGM as an important opportunity to meet private sharehalders At its AGM, which 1s
chaired by the Charman, the Company complies with the provisions of the Code relating to the notice penod
required, disclosure of proxy votes, the separahon of resolutions and the aftendance of committee charrmen

Financial Reporting

The Board seeks to present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company's posthon and
prospects Details are given the Business Review on pages 8 to 11
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, Directors’ Remunerahon Report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financral statements for each financial year Under that law the
Drrectors have prepared the Group finoncial statements in aecordance with International Financial Reporhing
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that IFRS financial statements present fairly for each financial
year the Group’s financial position. financial performance and cash flows This requires the fair representation
of the effects of transactions, other events and condiions in accordance with the definttons and recognition
critena for assets, kabiliies, ncome and expenses set out in the International Accounting Standards Board's
“Framewaork for the preparaton and presentation of financial statements” In virtually all circumstances, a fair
presentation will be achieved by compliance with all applicable IFRSs Directors are also required fo

® properly select and apply accounting policies,

® present information, iIncluding accounting policies, In a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information, and

@ provide addiional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient
to enakle users to understand the iImpact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the
eniity’s financial position and financial perdformance

The Directors have elected to prepare the Company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Prachce (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) The
Company financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to

® select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

® make jJudgements and estmates that are reascnable and prudent,

¢ siate whether applicoble UK Accounting Standards have been foliowed, subject 1o any matenal
depariures disclosed and explained i the financial statements, and

® prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t is INnappropriate to presume that the
Company will centinue In business

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial posihion of the Company and enable them to ensure that the Company financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2004 They are also respansible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and hence for taking reasonabile steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
iregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information

Included on the Group's website Legisiation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
disserruination of financial siatements may differ from legisiahon in cther Junsdictions
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Portmeirion Group PLC

We have audited the financial statements of Porfmeinon Group PLC for the year ended 31 December 2010
which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income,
the Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, the Company Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Equity
and the related notes The financial reporing framework that has been applied in the preparation of the
Group’s financial statements is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation
of the Company financial statements 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdorn Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Respective responsibiliies of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibiliftes set out on page 31, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being sahsfied that they give a true and
far view

Our responsibilty 1s fo audit and express an apinton on the financial statements In accordance with
applicable law and International Standards cn Auditing (UK and lreland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors This report 1s made solely to
the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our
audit wark has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s memibers those matters we are
required fo state to them in an auditor’s report and far no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law.
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members
as a body for our audit weork, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A descnphion of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the APB's website at www frc org
uk/apb/scope/prvate cfm

Opinion on the financial statements

In our opinton

@ the financial statements give a frue and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Company's affarrs
as at 31 December 2010 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

® the Group financial statements have been properly prepared In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union,

® the Company financial statemenis have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accountng Practice, and

# the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Comparies
Act 2006
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Independent Auditors’ Report continued

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinton the iInformation given 1n the Report of the Directors for the financal year for which the financal
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financiol statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report In respect of the following

Under the Compantes Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, In our opinion

® adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for ocur audit
have not been receved from branches not visited by us or

® the Company financial statements are not iIn agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration speciied by low are not made, or

® we hove not received all the informathon and explanahons we require for our cudit

Paul Lucas (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on kehalf of Mazars LLP -
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

45 Church Street

Birmingham

22 March 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
Notes £000 £'000
Revenue 4.5 51,243 43,165
Operating costs 6 (45,728) (38.,573)
Operating profit before exceptional items 5,515 4,592
Operating exceptional items 7 (199) {207)
Operating profit after operating exceptlonal items 5,316 4,385
Investment revenue 4,10 8 7
Finance costs 1 (182) (681)
Share of profit of associated undertakings 107 7
Profit before tax 5,249 3.718
Tax 12 (1.774) (1.265)
Profit for the year atributable to equity holders 25 3,475 2,453
Eornlngs per share 14 34.91p 24 73p
Diluted earnings per share 14 34.39p 24 66p
Bividends paid and proposed per share 13 17.40p 15 80p

All the above figures relale to continuing operations



Portmeitrion Group PLC

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009

Notes <000 £'000

Profit for the year 3,475 2,453
Exchange differences on transtation of foreign cperations 26 253 (773)

Actuanal {loss)/gain on defined benefit pension scheme 30 (1.606) 254
Deferred tax on other comprehensive income 23 542 7
Other comprehensive iIncome for the year (811) (590)

Total comprehensive Incoma for the year atiributable to equity holders 2,664 1.863
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Portmeirion Group PLC
Report and Accounis 2010

Consolidated Balance Sheet
31 December 2010

2010 2009

Notes £'000 £'000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 15 2,038 2,395
Property, plant and equipment 16 6,159 5611
Interests in associates 17 1,472 1.327
Deferred tax asset 23 710 289
Total non-current assets 10,379 9.622
Current assets
Inventornes 18 9,655 8,784
Trade and other receivables 19 7.702 7.035
Cash and cash equivalents 20 6,249 5,439
Total curront assets 23,606 21,258
Total assots 33,985 30,880
Current liabliiiltes
Trade and other payables 22 {7.204) (5.128)
Current income tax labilities (300) (508)
Borrowings 21 - (284)
Total current liabilities {7.504) (5,920)
Non-current Hiabilitles
Pension scheme defici 30 (4,302) (3.637)
Borrowings 21 - {763)
Grant received (57) (74)
Total non-cumrent liabitities (4.359) (4.474)
Total liabllities (11.863) {10.394)
Net assols 22,122 20,486
Equity
Cailled up share capital 24 528 528
Share premium account 25 4,951 4,820
Treasury shares 25 €1.047) (1,202)
Share-based paymaent reserve 25 267 159
Transiaton reserve 26 1,040 630
Retalned earnings 25 16,383 15,551
Total equity 22,122 20,486

These financial stolements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 22 March

20711 They were signed on its behalf by

Directors

el

L.F. Bryan
B.W.JJ Phillips
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2010

Portmeirion Group PLC

Share-
Share based
Share  premium Treasury  payment Translation Retained
caprtal account shares reserve reserve earnings Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000

At 1 January 2009 528 4,820 (1.202) 146 1,403 14,353 20,048
Profit far the year - - - - - 2,453 2.453
Other comprehensive
income for the year - - - - (773) 183 (590)
Total comprehensive
Income for the year - - - - (773) 2,636 1,863
Dmvidends paid - - - - - (1.458) (1.458)
Increase in share-based
payment reserve - - - 13 - - 13
Deferred tax on share-
based payment - - - - - 20 20
At 1 January 2010 528 4,820 (1.202) 159 630 15,551 20,486
Profit for the year - - - - - 3.475 3,475
Other comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 410 (1.221) 811
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 410 2,254 2,664
Dwdends pad - - - - - (1.607) (1.607)
Increase in share-
based payment reserve - - - 108 - - 108
Shares ssued under
employee share schemes - 131 155 - - - 286
Deferred tax on share-
based payment - - - - - 185 185
At 31 December 2010 528 4,951 (1.047) 267 1,040 16,383 22,122
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009

£000 £000
Operating profit atter operating exceptional Hems 5,316 4,385
Adustments for
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 772 666
Amortisation of infangible assets 357 293
Contnibutions to defined benefit pension scheme (951) (600)
Charge for share-based payments 108 13
Exchange loss a9) (218)
Loss/ (profit) on sale of tangible fixed assets 77 5
Operating cash flows before movements in working capltal 5,660 4,534
{Increase)/decrease In inventones (795) 1172
Increase in receivables (570) {1.133)
Increase in payables 2.032 921
Cash generated from operations 6,327 5,494
Interest paid (160) 412)
lIncome taxes paid (1.676) (379)
Neot cash from operating activities 4,49 4,703
Investing activities
Interest received 8 20

L]

Proceeds on disposal of property. plant and equipment 8é 3
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1.474) (588)
Purchase of Intangible assets - (2.173)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (1.380) (2.710)
Financing activitles
Equity dwvidends paid ¢1,607) (1.458)
New bank loans raised - 1178
Repayments of bank loans (1.047) {131)
Shares 1ssued under employee share schemes 286 -
Net cash oulflow from financing activities (2,368) 4a11)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 743 1.5682
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5,439 3,938
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 67 (81
Cash and cash equivalents at and of year 6,249 5,439

38
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of preparation

Portmeinon Group PLC 1s a Company incorperated in England and Wales The address of the registered
office 15 given on page 78 The nature of the Group’s operations and its principal achviies are set out In
the Report of the Directors on pages 1410 19

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards adopted for use in the
European Union (International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs))

The going concern basts has been considered in the Report of the Directors on page 15

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling becouse that 1s the currency of the pnmary
economic environment in which the Group operates Foreign operations are included in accordance
with the policies set outinnote 25

In the current year, the following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted but
have not made any significant impact on the amounts repcrted In these financial statements but may
impact the accounhng for future transacthions and arrangements

IFRS 3 (2008) Business Combinations

IAS 27 (2008) Consclidated and Separate Financial Statements

IAS 28 (2008) Investments in Associates

IFRS 2 (amended) Share-based Payment and Group Cash-selfled Share-based
Payment Transachons

IAS 17 (amended) Legses

IAS 39 (amended) Financral instruments Recognihon and Measurement

IFRIC 17 Distnbutions of Non-cash Assefs to Owners

At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations
which have not been applied in these financial staterments were in 1ssue but not vet effective (and In
some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

|AS 24 (amended) Related Party Disclosures

IAS 32 (amended) Classification of Rights Issues

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Labilhes with Equity Instruments
IFRIC 14 (eamended) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

Impraverments 1o IFRSs (May 2010)

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future penods will
have no matenal impact on the financial statements of the Group

Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies which follow set out those policies which were applied in prepanng the financial

staterments for the year ended 31 December 2010

The financial statements have been prepared on the histoncal cost basis
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

21

22

23

40

Significant accounting policies continued

Basis of consohidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Portmeinon Group PLC
and its subsidianes The Group's share of the results and retained earnings of associated undertakings 1s
included

Subsidiary undertakings are consolidated on the basis of the acguistion method of accounting Intra-
group fransactions and balances are eliminated fully on consolidation and the consolidated accounts
reflect external transactions only Subsicianes’ accounting policies are amended where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group

All accounts for subsidianes and associated companies have been prepared for the year ended

31 Decernber 2010 except for the accounts of Portmeinon Finance Limnited which, for cash flow reasons
associated with the date of payment of tax, have been prepared for the year ended 7 January 2011

and the accounts of Portmeirion Canada Inc which have a year end of 30 June 2010 The Group
accounts iInclude intenm financia!l information to 31 December 2010 for Portmerrion Finance Limited and
Portmeinon Canada Inc

Investment in associated undertakings (“associates™)

An associate 15 an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that s nerther a subsidiary
nor an interest In a Joint venture Significant iInfluence 1s the power to participate In the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but 1s not control or joint control over those policies

The results and assets and labilities of associates are incorporated in these finoncial staterments using
the equity method of accounting Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried In the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted by post-acguisiion changes 1n the Group’s share of the
net assets of the associate, less any impairment in the value of Individual investments

Where a Group company fransacts with an associate of the Group. profits and Iosses are eliminated fo
the extent of the Group's inferest In the relevant associcte

Revenue recognihon

Revenue 1s measured at the far value of the consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts,
VAT and other sales-related taxes

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed
Interest Income 1s accrued on a time basis, by reference fo the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through

the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount

Royalty revenue 1s recognised on an accruals basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreement

Royalhies determined on a time basis are recogrused on a straight-ine basis over the penod of the
agreement
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

2,

24

25

26

27

Significant accounting policies confinued

Operating leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to iIncome on a strarghtdine basis over the term of
the relevant lease

In the event that lease incentives are receved to enter intc operating leases, such incentives are
recoghrised ds a ability The aggregate benefit of incentives 1s recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-ine basis

Foreign currencies

The individual financial staterments of each Group company are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates (its funchonal currency) The results and financial posttion

of each Group company dre expressed In pounds sterling, which 1s the funchonal currency of the
Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated financral statements

In prepanng the financial statements of the iIndividual companies, transachions In currencies other than
the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions At each balance sheet dale. monetary assets and liabilihes that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated af the rates prevailing at that date Non-monetary
items that are measured 1n terms of histenical cost in o foreign currency are not retranslated

Exchange differences arising on the seftlement of monetary tems, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are included in profit or loss for the year

In order to hedge Its exposure fo certain foreign exchange nisks, the Group enters into forward contracts
(see below for details of the Group’s accounting policies in respect of such denvative financial
instruments)

For the purpase of presenting consalidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date Income and
expense items are franslated at the average exchange rates for the period Exchange differences ansing,
if any, are recognised In other comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity

Operahng profit
Cperating profit 1s stated both before and after exceptional tems but before iInvestment revenue, finance
costs and share of profit of associated undertakings

Group pension schemes
Payments to defined coninbution retirement schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due

For defined benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits 1s determined using the defined accrued
benefit method, with actuanal valuations being camed out ¢t least tnennially and updated at each
balance sheet date Actuarncl gains and losses are recognised In full in the penod :n which they occur
They are recogrised outside profit or loss and presented in other comprehensive iIncome

Past service costs are recognised immediately o the extent thot the benefits are already vested. and
otherwise are amortised on a straightdine basis over the average penod until the benefits become
vested The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of
the defined benefit cbligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the fair
value of scheme assets
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

conhnued

2.8

29

42

Significant accounting policies continued

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

Current tax

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported In the Income statement because 1t excludes items of Income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and 1t further excludes items that are never taxable or deduchble The Group’s
hakiliy for current tax 15 calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date

Deterred tax

Deferred tax 15 the tax expecied to be payakle or recoverable on diferences between the carrying
amounits of assets and ligbilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used N the
computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet llability method Deferred
tax abilties are generally recognised for ali faxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the exdent that 1t 15 probable that taxable profits will be available against which deduchble
temporary differences can be utlised Such assets and abilities are not recognised If the temporary
difference anses from the inal recognihon of goodwili or from the inthial recogniiien {other than i a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities In a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax habilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group Is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and 1t i1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse In the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred fax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced fo the
extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow alt or part of the
asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated ot the tax rates that are expected o apply in the period when the hability 15
settled or the asset 1s realised based on fax laws and rates that have been enacted at the balance
sheet date Deferred tax s charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items
charged or credited in other comprehensive income, In which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt within
other comprehensive Income

Deferred tax assets and liabilhies are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax
assets against current tax labilihes and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same faxation
authonty and the Group Intends to seffle ts current tax assets and habiliies on a net basis

Property, plant and equipment
Freehold land s not deprecicted

Property, plant and eguiprnent are held at cost less accurmulated depreciation and any recognised
imparment losses
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

2, Sigmficant accounting policies conhinued

29 Property, plant and equipment continued
Depreciahon 1s recognised so as to write off the cosit of assets (other than land) less their residual values
over therr useful lives, using the straight-ine or the reducing balance method, on the following bases

Freehold bulldings — 2% per annum
Leasehold improvements — over the life of the lease
Plant and vehicles — 6% to 33% per annum

2 10 Intangible assets
Purchases of intellectual property are included at cost and written off in equal annual instalments over
therr estimated useful economic Iife of 5-10 years Provision 1s made for any impairment

Computer software 1s held af cost less accumulated amorhisation less any recognised impairrment losses
Amortisation 1s charged so as to wiite off the cost of asset less their residual value over ther useful lives,
using the straightdine method The estimated useful life of computer software 1s between three and

ten years

211 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its fangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there 1s any indication that those assets have suffered an impairrment loss
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s eshmated in order 1o determine the
extent of the mpawment loss

Recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value In use In assessing value in
use, the eshmated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amecunt of an asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s eshmated to be less than s carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s reduced to ifs recoverable
amount An impairment loss Is recognised as an expense immediately

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit) 15 Increased to the revised eshimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recogrised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years A reversal of an impairment
loss 1s recognised as ncome immediately

2.12 Inventones
Inventories are stated at the lower of ¢cost and net realisable value Cost comprises direct matenals
and., where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred 1n bnnging
the inventones to ther present location and condition Cost 1s calculated using the weighted average
method Net realisable value represents the estmated selling prce less all estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution
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2  Significant accounting policies continued

2.13 Research and development
Expenditure on research achivifies 1s recognised as an expense in the penod in which it 1s incurred

An infernally generated intangible asset ansing from the Group's development activities 1s recognised
only if ali of the following conditions are met

® anasset s created that can be identified (such as software and new processes).
® 115 probable that the asset created will generate fuiure economic benefits, and
® the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably

2.14 Purchase of own shares
Investment iIn own shares has been classified to other reserves — treasury shares These shares are valued
at the weighted average cost of purchase Treasury shares are a deduction from equity

2 15 Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial labilties are recognised in the Group's balance sheet when the Group
becomes a parly to the contractual provistons of the instrument

Denvative financial instruments

The Group's achvities expose it to the financial nsks of changes 1n foreign currency exchange rates
The Group uses fareign exchange forward contracts to hedge this exposure The Group does not use
denvative financial instruments for speculative purposes

Changes in the far value of denvative financial instruments that are designated and effective as
hedges of future cash flows are recognised directly In equity and the ineffective portion 1s recogrused
immediately in the iIncome statement Amounts deferred in equity are recognised in the ncome
statement in the same peniod 1In which the hedged frem aoffects net profit or loss

Changes in the far value of denvative financiol instruments that do net qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised In the Income statement as they arise

Hedge accounting 15 disconfinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or
exercised, or no longer quailifies for hedge accounting At that time, any cumutative gain or loss on the
hedging instrument recognised In equily 1s retained in equity until the forecasted transachon occurs

Receivables

Trade recevables and other recervables that have fixed or determinable payments that are net quoted
in an active market are categorsed as loans and recevables These are measured at amorhsed cost
using the efiective interest method. less any impairment

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnses cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly
hquid investrments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant nsk of changes in value Cash and cash eguivalents are categonsed s loans and
recevables
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2, Significant accounting policies continued

2.18 Financial instruments contnued
Financial itabtifies and equry
Financial habilities and equity instruments are classified according fo the substance of the coniractual
arrangements entered Info An equity Instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of an entity after deducting all of its habilities Equrty instruments 1ssued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs

Other financial iabilities, iIncluding borrowings, are inhally measured at farr value, net of transaction
costs Other financial habifihes are subsequently measured at amorhsed cost using the effective interest
method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis

Further details on the Group's financial instruments can be found In note 31

2.16 Share-based payments
Equrty-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similor services are measured
at the farr value of the equity instruments at the grant date The fair value excludes the effect of non
market-based vesting conditions Detalls regarding the determination of the far value of egqurty-settled
share-based fransachons are set out In note 32

The farr value determined at the grant date of the equity-seftled share-based payments 1s expensed on
o straightHine basis over the vesting penod., based on the Group’s estimate of equity Instruments that
will eventually vest At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of non market-based veshng conditions The mpact
of the revision of the onginal estimates, If any, 1s recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulchive
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adyjustment to equily reserves

2.17 Grant income

Grant income relahing to a commitment to employ individuals 1s treated os deferred iIncome and
released to the iIncome statement once the contractual penod has elapsed

45

Qur Governance Our Performance

Our Financials

Shareholder Information



Portmeirion Group PLC
Report and Accounts 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of eshmahon uncertainty
in the apphication of the Group’s accounting policies, which are descrnbed In note 2, the Directors are
required to make judgements, eshmates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
habihes that are not readily apparent from other sources The estimates and associated assumpthons are
based on histoncal expenence and other factors that are considered to be relevant Actual results may
differ from these estimates

The estmates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the year in which the estmate 1s revised f the revision affects only that year, or in
the year of the revision and future years if the revision affects beoth current and future years

Cntheal judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

The following are the crihical jJudgements that the Directors have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements

impairment of inventory

Provision Is made for the iImpairment of slow-moving and obsolete inventory based on histoncal and
forecast sales and estimates of net reclisable value The carrying value of inventory at the year end was
£9.655,000 (2009 - £8.784.000)

Defined benefit pension scheme

The valuation of the Group's defined benefit pension scheme assets and labiiies under 1AS 19
Employee Benefits requires assumphons fo be made regarding returns on assets, inflation, discount rates,
salary, mortality and penston increases The carrying value of the scheme hability at the year end was
£4,302,000 (2009 - £3,637,000)

4. Revenue
An analysis of the Group’s revenue 1s as follows

2010 2009
£000 £'000

Continuing operations
Sale of goods 51,009 43,002
Royattes 234 163
51,243 43,165
Investment Income 8 7
51,251 43,172
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conhinued

8. Segmental analysis
IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of Internal reports about the
components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Chief Executive fo allocate resources o the
segments and fo assess their perfformance Based upon the nature and extent of these internal reports,
the Directors are of the opinton that there are two reporiable segments under IFRS 8, namely the UK and
US operations The Directors are of the opinion that only one class of business is being undertaken, that of
the manufacture and sale of poftery and asscciated homeware

2010 2009
Inter- Sales to Infer Sales to
Total segment third Total  segment thirdd
sales sales parties sales sales parhes
Revenue by orlgin £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Urited Kingdom 34,803 (4,558) 30,245 30,513 (4.438) 26,075
United States 20,998 - 20,998 17,090 - 17.090
55,801 (4.558) 51,243 47,603 (4.438) 43,165

Included in revenues ansing from the United Kingdom are revenues of £9,816,000 (2009 - £7,205,000)
which arose from sales to the Group's largest customer in South Korea

2010 2009
Before Operating Befcre Operating
exceptional exceptional exceptiondal excephonal
Operating profit/ ltems items Total iterms ifems Total
{loss) by origin £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £°000 £'000
United Kingdom 3,002 199 2,803 2,087 75) 2,012
Urited States 2,513 - 2,513 2,506 (132) 2,373
Operating profit/ (loss) 5,515 (199) 5316 4,592 (207 4,385
Unallocated iterns
Share of profit of associated
undertakings 107 7
Investment revenue 8 7
Finance costs (182) (681)
Profit before tax 5,249 3.718
Tax (1.774) (1.265)
Profit offer tax 3,475 2,453
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48

Segmental analysis confinued

2010 2009
United United Con- United United Con-

Kingdom states sclidated  Kingdom States  solidated
Other Information £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Capital addihions 807 667 1,474 2,416 345 2.761
Depreciahon and amorhisation 958 171 1.129 878 81 95¢
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment ossels 24,974 7.539 32,513 20,475 2.078 29,553
Interests in associates 1,472 1,327
Consclidated total assets 33,985 30,880
Liabllitles
Segment habilhes 9.57% 2,284 11,863 9.420 974 10,394

There are no unallocated corporate labilites in 2010 and 2009

The following foble provides an analysis of the Group's revenue by geographical market, irespective of

the ongin of the products

2010 2009
Revenue £'000 £000
United Kingdom 12,615 13,102
United States 21.210 17,252
South Korea 9.816 7.205
Rest of the World 7,602 5,606

51,243 43,165

Reconcliliation of earnings before exceptional lems, 2010 2009
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation £'000 £'000
Operating profit before exceptional items 5,515 4,592
Add bock
Depreciation 172 666
Amorhsation 357 293
Earnings before exceptional tems, interest, tax,
depreciation and amorhisation 6,644 5,551

2010 2009
Profit beforo fax reconciliation £'000 £'000
Pre-tax profit before excephonal tems 5,448 3,925
Operating excephonal tems (note 7) (199) (207)
Pre-tax profit after exceptional items 5,249 3,718




Portmeinon Group PLC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

6. Operahling costs

2010
Before Operating
exceptional exceptional

2009
Before Operating

excephonal excephonal

items Items Total ifems items Total
{note 7) {note 7)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost of Inventones
recognised ds an expense 19,669 - 19.669 16,467 - 16,467
Movement on inventory
Imparment proviston 87 - 87 B3 - 53)
Other external charges 9.574 199 9,773 8,235 132 8,367
Staff costs (note 8) 14,938 - 14,938 12,631 75 12,706
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 772 - 772 666 - 664
Amortsation of Intangible assets 357 - 357 293 - 293
Impairment of trade recevables 51 - 51 39 - 39
Cost of research and
development 298 - 298 198 - 198
Net foreign exchange losses 1 - 1 116 - 16
Government grants a9 - 9 a9 - (9

45,728 199 45,927 38,673 207 38,780

7. Exceptional items

The Directors define reorganisation costs as exceptional Specifically included under such exceptional
iterns are costs iIncurred in the early redemption of a bank facility agreement In the comparative year
excephonal tems comprised redundancy costs and addiional costs incurred due to the relocation of

acqguired inventory

The analysis of excephional items 1s as follows

2010 2009

Operating exceptional flems £'000 £'000
Facility redemption costs 199 -
Cost associated with relocation of inventory - 132
Redundancy costs - 75
199 207
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8

Staff numbers and costs

2010 2009
Number Number

The average number of persons employed dunng the year, including Directors
Operatives 318 270
Salaned employees 214 217
532 487
£000 £'000

Staff costs

Wages and salanes 12,689 10,784
Social secunty costs 1,092 895
Defined contribulion and money purchase penston scheme costs 742 684
Non-monetary benefits 415 343
14,938 12,706

The Company had noc employees throughout 2010 or 2009

Detalls of individual Directors’ remuneration, pension contributions and pension entitlements required by
the Companies Act 2006 are shown n the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 20 to 26, fogether

with details of Directors’ current share options

Auditors’ remuneration

2010 2009
£'000 £000
Fees payable to the Group's auditors for the audit of the
Group’s annual accounts 43 43
Total audit fees 43 43
Fees payable to the Group’s auditors and their associates for other services
fo the Group
Other services - intenm review -] b6
Tax comphance services 5 8
Other tax services 28 -
Total non-audit fees 39 14
Fees payable to the Group’s auditors and their assoclates In respect of
assoclated pension schemes
Audit of the Portmeinon Poitenes Limited Retirement Benefits Scheme 4 4
4 4

The audt fee for the Company was £1,500 (2009 - £1.500)

Fees payable to Mazars LLP and therr associates for non-audit serices to the Compary are not required
to be disclosed becouse the consolidated financial statemenits are required to disclose such fees ona

consolidated basis
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10,

1.

12

Investment revenue

Portmeirion Group PLC

2010 2009
£'000 £000
Bank deposits 2 5
Gains on financial denvatives - 2
Other interest receivable é -
8 7
Finance costs
2010 2009
£'000 £000
Interest pad 172 412
Defined benefit pension scheme - other finance costs 10 269
182 681
Taxahon on profit on ordinary activihes
2010 2009
£'000 £000
Unuted Kingdom corparation tax at 28% (2009 - 28%) 617 621
Adjustment of corporation tax in respect of prior years 4 4
Overseas faxation 855 871
Double tax relief - (340)
Current taxation 1,468 1,138
Deferred taxaton ongination and reversal of iming differences a5 34
Pension scheme 241 3
Deferred taxation 306 127
1,774 1,265

UK Corporation tax 1s calculated at 28% (2009 - 28%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year

Taxahion for other Jurisdichons 1s calculated at the rates prevaling in the respective junisdichions
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52

Taxation on profit on ordinary activihes continued

The standard rate of tax for the year, based on the UK standard rate of corporation tax, 1s 28%

(2009 - 28%)

The actuat tax charge for the current and the previous year differs from the standard rate for the reasons

set out in the following reconciiation

2010 2009

£'000 £'000
Profit on ordinary activiies before faxahon 5,249 3,718
Tax on profit on ordinary activiies at standard rate of 28% (2009 - 28%) 1,470 1.041
Factors affecting charge for the year
Expenses not deduchble for tax purposes 198 Py |
Small companies tax reliet (5) m
Foreign tax charged at higher rates than UK standard rate 155 232
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years (C)) 04
Difference relating to associates tax charge (40) 6
Double tax relief —_ (340)
Total tax on profit on ordinary achvities 1,774 1,265
Dividends paid

2010 2009

£000 £'000
Final dmdend of 12 25p per share paid in respect of the year ended 31 December
200% (2009 - final dvidend of 11 15p per share paid N respect of the year ended
31 December 2008} 1.219 1.106
Intenm dividend of 3 90p per share paid in respect of the year ended 31 December
2010 (2009 - intenm dividend of 3 55p per share In respect of the year ended
31 December 2009) 388 352
Total dwidends paid in the year 1.607 1,458

The Directors recommend that a final dividend for 2010 of 13 50p (2009 - 12 25p) per ordinary share

be paid, making a total for the year of 17 40p (2009 - 15 80p) per share The final dividend will be

paid, subject to shareholders’ approval, on 25 May 2011, to shareholders on the register at the close of
business on 26 Apri 2011 This dmidend has not been included as o kability in these financial statements
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14, Earnings per share
The calculaton of basic and diluted earnings per share 1s based on the following data

15.

2010 2009
Welghted Weighted
average  Earnings average Earmings
number per share Earnings number  per share
of shares (pence) £ ofshares (pence)
Basic earnings per share 9,955,34¢% 34.9%  2453.000 9.919.956 2473
Effect of dilutive secunties
employee share ophions 149.8456 - - 29,132 -
Diluted earmings per share 3,475,000 10,105,195 34.39 2,453,000 9.949.088 24 66
Intangible assets
Computer Intellectual
software property Total
£000 £'000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 2009 439 524 963
Addrons 4 2,169 2173
At January 2010 443 2,693 3,136
Disposals (64) - (64)
At 31 December 2010 37¢ 2,693 3,072
Amorhisation
At 1 January 2009 216 232 448
Charge for the year 44 249 293
At 1 January 2010 260 481 741
Charge far the year 34 a2 357
On disposals (64) - (64)
At 31 December 2010 232 802 1,034
Net book value
At 31 December 2010 147 1,891 2,038
At 31 December 2009 183 2,212 2,395

Included withun intellectual property are the nghts to certain intellectual properly and the trade names
of Spode and Royal Worcester, purchased in April 2009 At the year end this had a carrying value of
£1,808.000 (2009 - £2,024,000) The remaining amorhisation pernod 1s 8 years and 4 months
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16 Property, plant and equipment
Land ond buldings

Leasehold
improve-  Plant and
Freehold ments vehicles Total
£'000 £'00C £°000 £000

Cost
At 1 January 2009 3,857 930 14,357 19,144
Addihons - 97 491 588
Disposals - - (53) 53
Exchange rote adjustments - (22 (81) (103)
At 1 January 2010 3.857 1,005 14,714 19.576
Additions - 464 1,010 1,474
Disposals - (212) (3.378) (3.590)
Exchange rote adjustments - {5) 21 16
At 31 December 2010 3,857 1,262 12,367 17.476
Depreciaiion
A1 January 2009 1,394 556 11.432 13.382
Charge for the year 78 44 544 666
On disposals - - 27 (27)
Exchange rate adjustments - (20) 36) (56)
At 1 January 2010 1.472 580 11,913 13,965
Charge for the year 70 74 628 772
On disposals - (170) (3.257) (3.427)
Exchange rate adjustments - (D 8 7
At 31 December 2010 1,542 483 9.292 11.317
Net book value
At 31 December 2010 2,315 769 3,075 6,159
At 31 December 2009 2,385 425 2,801 5,611

At 31 December 2010, the Group had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisition of
property. plant ond equipment amounting to £186,000 (2009 - £nil)

Following renovahons in the year to the UK head office and the US showroom, along with a detaled
review of assets no longer In use by the business, assets with a zero net book value but with cost and
accumulated depreciation of £3,346,000 were treated as disposals dunng the year
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18

Interests in associates

2010 2009
Assoctated undertokings £'000 £'000
Furlong Mills Limited
2,080 ordinary shares of £1 each representing 27 58% of the 1ssued share capital
Share of net assets 897 1,196
Discount on acquisition 13) (13)
Impairment of investment In Furlong Mills Limited (309) (693)
875 490
Portmeinon Canada Inc
100 common shares representing 50% of the 1ssued share capital
Share of net assels 897 837
1,472 1,327
2010 2009
Aggregated amounts relating 1o associaies €000 £'000
Total assefs 7,090 7,426
Total labilities {1.585) .217)
Revenues 10,068 8,880
Profit/ (loss) before tax 585 (141)

A list of the significant iInvestments in subsidianes and associates, Including the name, country of
incorporation and proportion of ownership interest 1s given in note ¢ 1o the Company’s separate
financial statements on pages 74 and 75

Porimeinan Canada Inc has been accounted for as an associate as it 1s Independently managed from
Canada, and with a 50% share of ownership the Directors consider that the Group asserts significant
influence but not joint control

In the current year there has been an imparrment of fixed assets in the accounts of Furlong Mills
Limited This has led to a reversal of the previously incurred impairment charge in the Group accounts
of £384,000 (2009 - £nil) which anticipated the charge in the entity accounts of the associated
undertaking

Inventories
2010 2009
£'000 £000
Raw matenals ond other consumables 1,075 1.147
Work in progress 604 498
Finished goods 7.976 7.139
9,655 8,784
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19. Trade and other receivables

2010 2009

£000 £'000
Amount recevable for the sale of goods 6,455 6,252
Allowance for doubtful debts {237) (283)
Trade recewvables 6.218 5,949
Amounts owed by associated undertakings 373 38
Other receivables 13 14
Prepayments and accrued income 1,098 671

7,702 7.035

Generally no interest 1s charged on recevables, however, there 1s provision In the Group's terms and
conditions for interest to be charged on late payments The allowance for doubtful debts has been
determined by reference to past default experience and a review of specific customers’ debts at the
year end

Included in the Group's frade recevable balance are debtors with a carrying amount of £2,009,000
(2009 - £1.554,000) which are past due at the reporting date far which the Group has not provided
as there has not been a significant change in credrt quality and the amounts are shil considered
recoverable The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances The average age of these
receivables ts 53 days (2009 - 55 days)

2010 2009
Ageing of past due but not mpaired receivables €000 £'000
30-40 days 1,552 Q39
60-90 days 273 558
90+ days 184 57
Total 2,009 1,554

2010 2009
Movement In the allowance for doubtful debts £'000 £000
Balance af the beginning of the year 283 244
Imparrment losses recognised 51 39
Amounts wntten off as uncollectable (97) -
Balance atf the end of the year 237 283

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable the Group considers any change in the cradit
qualhty of the trade receivable from the date credit was inthally granted up to the reporting date The
concentrahon of credrt nsk 1s imited due to the customer base being large and unrelated Accordingty,
the Directors believe that there is no further credit provision required in excess of the allowance for
doubtfui debts

2010 2009
Ageing of iIndividually impaired trade receivables £'000 £'000
120+ days 142 192
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19 Trade and other receivables continued

20.

21

Included n the allowance for doubtful debts are individually iImpaired trade receivables with ¢ balance
of £9,000 (2009 - £52,000) which have been placed into iguidation The impairment recogrised
represents the difference between the carrying amount of these trade receivables and the present value
of the expected liquidation proceeds The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to therr
fair value

Cash and cash equivalents

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 6,249 5,439

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an
onginal maturity of three maonths ar less The carrying amount of these assets approximates to therr far
value

Borrowings

2010 2009
Secured borrowing at amortised ¢ost £000 £'000
Bank loans - 1.047
Amount due for settlement within 12 months - 284
Arnount due for settiement affer 12 months - 763

The Group renegotiated its borrowing facility dunng the year All existing borrowings were repaid on
16 June 2010

The Group now has two facilihes

a) A£2,000,000 overdraft facility avallable until 31 May 2011 Interest 1s payable at 1 75% on the net
pocled fund balance, plus bank base rate on net sterling borrowings

k) A £2,000.000 revolving credit facility avallable until 31 May 2013 Interest 15 payable at 1 9% above
three month LIBOR

These facilimes are secured by an unlimited debenture from the Group and a first charge over Group
property

Neither of these facilites were being utiised at 31 December 2010
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22. Other financial ligbilities

23,

2010 2009

Trade and other payables £'000 £000
Trade creditors and accruals 6,124 4,392
Amounts owed fo associated undertakings 100 24
Other taxation and social secuniy 439 462
Other creditors 541 250
7,204 5128

Trade creditors and accruals principally compnse amounts outstanding for trade purchases, ongoing
costs and indirect taxes The average credit period taken for trade purchases 15 35 days (2009 - 34 days)
For most suppliers no interest 1s charged on the trade payables from the date of invoice fo the end of
the fallowing month Thereafier, interest may be charged on the outstanding balances at vanous interest
rates The Group’s policy I1s o pay all payables within the credit meframe

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to therr farr value
Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax labilihes and assets recognised by the Group and movements
thereon durng the current and prior reporting years

Accelerated Rehrement Share- Capital Other
tax benefit based gan temporary
depreciation obligations payment  held over differences Total
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
A1 January 2009 462 (1.182) - 387 (134) (467)
Charge/(credit) to ncome 64 93 © - (24) 127
Charge/ (credit) fo equity - ral (20) - - 51
A1 January 2010 526 (1.018) (26) 387 (158) (289)
Charge/(credit) to Income 158 241 (55) a4 (24) 306
Credit fo equity - - (185) - - (185)
Credit to other
comprehensive Income - {385) - - (157) {542)
At 31 December 2010 684 (1.162) (266) 373 (339) (710)

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been cffset The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes

2010 2009

£000 £000

Deferred tax hakulhes 1,057 913
Deferred tax assets (1.767) (1.202)
(710) (289)

At the balance sheet date, the Group had no unused tax trading or capital losses (2009 - Srul) avalable
for offset aganst future profits

Temporary differences ansing in connection with interests in associates and joint ventures are insignificant
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24 Share capital

2010 2009
Number Number
‘000 £'000 ‘000 £'000
Authonsed share capital
ordinary shares of 5p each 15,000 750 15,000 750
Allotted, called up and fully paid share capital
ordinary shares of 5p each 10,563 528 10,563 528

The market price of the Company’s shares at 31 December 2010 was 530 Op per share Dunng the year
the price ranged between 305 0p and 550 Op per share

The Company has ane class of ordinary shares which carry no nght to fixed income

Options granted to Directors and employees (note 32) to acqguire ordinary shares of 5p in the Cempony
and shll outstanding at 31 December 2010 were Qs follows

Exercise Dates on which
Number  price per exercisable

of shares share (p) Earliest Latest
The Portmetnon 2002 Share Ophon Scheme 147,144 3450 01042010 03042011
The Portmeinon 2002 Share Option Scheme 104,000 2600 16042011 14042012
The Portmeinon 2002 Share Option Scheme 199,000 1975 29052012 27052019
The Portmeinon 2002 Share Option Scheme 195,000 3745 30032013 28032020
The Portmeinon Group 2010 Deferred Incentive
Share Option Plan 28,352 - 28052013 2508 2013

Optians held by the Directors are shown in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 25 and 26
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26

60

Share premium account and reserves

Share Share-based
premium Treasury  payment  Retained
account shares reserve earmings
£000 £000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2009 4,820 (1.202) 144 14,353
Profit for the financial year - - - 2,453
Dividends paid - - - (1.458)
Increase in share-based payment reserve - - 13 -
Movement in pension scheme liability net of
related deferred tax - - - 183
Deferred tax on share-based payment - - - 20
At 1 January 2010 4,820 (1.202) 159 15,551
Profit for the financial year - - - 3.475
Dividends paid - - - (1.607)
Increase in share-based payment reserve - - 108 -
Movement in pension scheme liability net of
related deferred tax - - - (1.221)
Shares issued under employee share schemes 131 155 - -
Deferred tax on share-based payment - - - 185
At 31 December 2010 4,951 {1.047) 267 16,383

The cumulative amount of goodwill writen off at 31 December 2010 was £515,000 (2009 - £515,000)
The retained earnings of £16,383.000 (2009 - €15,551,000) includes the Group’s share of associated
undertakings’ post-acquisiion reserves of £2,137,000 (2009 - £2.030.000)

The Group cunrently holds 560,218 (2009 - 643,074) ordinary shares of 5p each in treasury

Translation reserve

Translahon

reserve

£'000

At 1 January 2009 1,403
Exchange differences on translation of overseas operations (773)
At 1 January 2010 630
Exchange differences on translahon of overseas operations 2563
Deferred fax relating to gains ansing on translation of overseas operations 157
At 31 December 2010 1,040
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27.

28,

Commitments
Operating lease arrangements
The Group as lessee

2010 2009

£000 £'000
Minimumn lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense
in the year 1,390 1.166
At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

2010 2009

£000 £'000
Within one year 1,501 1.268
In the second to fifth years inclusive 5,206 3.836
After five years 3.016 2,140

9.723 7,244

The Group as lessor

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the following future minimum

lease receipts

2010 2009

£'000 £'000

Within one year 117 117
In the second to fitth years inclusive 439 468
After five years - 88
556 673

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its UK retail outlets, its
UK and US warehouses, cerfain UK motor vehicles and its New York offices and showroom Leases are

negotiated on an individual basis

Contingent labilihes

The Group has given a guarantee of up fo $900.000 to the landlord of the premises of Portmeinon Group

USA Inc located in Connechicut, USA
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29. Related party transactions
Transactions between the Group and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been elminated on
consohdation and are not disclosed in this note Transachons between the Group and its associates are
disclosed below Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes and associates are disclosed in
note g of the Company’s financial statements on page 76

The transactions during the year with associated undertakings were

Purchases Purchases Sales Sales

2010 2009 2010 2009

£'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Portmeinon Canada Inc - - 2,385 1.871
Furlong Mills Lirmited 551 456 - -

The outstanding balances at 31 December 2010, with associated undertakings were

Debtor Debtor Credlitor Creditor

2010 2009 2010 2009

£'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Porimeinon Canada Inc 373 381 - -
Furlong Mills Limited - - 100 24

Sales to Portmeirion Canada Inc are made at prices agreed between Portmeirien Group UK Limited and
Portmenon Canada Inc The sales figure includes management fees for Group services

Purchases from Furlong Mills Limited are made at prices agreed between Portmeinon Group UK Limited
and Furlong Mills Limited Pertmeinon Group UK Limited receives a rebate related to its level of purchases
from Furlong Mills Limited

Several of the Directfors made purchases of goods from the Group dunng the year on the same terms as
those avallable to all employees Total purchases did not exceed £1,000 for any Director in the year or In

the prior year

No Director of the Company had a financial interest in any matenal contract, other than those for service,
{o which the Company was a party dunng the financial year

The key management personnel of the Group are considered to be the Directors, the remuneration of
whom is set out In the Drrectors’ Remuneration Report on page 24
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30. Pensions

The Group operates a Group stakeholder pension plan in the UK and a discretionary money purchase
scheme in the US

The total cost charged to income of £742,000 (2009 - £684,000) represents contributions payable to
these schemes by the Group ot rates specified in the rules of the schemes

The UK defined benefit scheme was frozen, 1 e closed to new entrants and for future accrual of benefits
at 5 April 1999

For the defined benefit scheme, the most recent tnennial valuation was at 5 Apnl 2008 The man
actuanal assumphons used in the valuation were

Pnce inflation of 3 70% per annum

Preretirement valuation rate of interest of 6 60% per annum

Post-retirement valuation rate of interest of 4 60% per annum

Increases fo pensions In payment of 5 00% per annum on benefits In excess of the guaranteed
minimum pension (GMP) earned pnor to & Apnl 1997 and 3 80% per annum on pensions eamed
after 6 Apnl 1997

Mortality experience based upon PCAQO tables with improvements based on year of birth and
medium cohort iImprovements, subject to a minimum level of Improvement of 1% per annum

At the date of the last valuation on 5§ April 2008 the market value of the scheme assets was £19,253,000
and the scheme had a deficiency of £5.397.000

The Group has applied IAS 19 Employee Benefits in full

The actuanal valuaton of the scheme was updated at 31 December 2010, 31 Decernber 2009 and
31 December 2008 by qualified actuanes

The major assumptions used by the actuarnes were

2010 2009 2008

Rate of Increase in pensions iIn payment
Post 06 04 88 GMP 3.00% 3 00% 300%
Pre 06 04 97 excess over GMP 5.00% 5 00% 5 00%
Post 06 04 97 pension 3.40% 3 45% 3 20%
Rate of revaluation of pensions in deferment 3.50% 3 55% 3 30%
Rate used to discount scheme labilities 5.40% 575% 6 10%
Inflahon assumption 3.50% 3 55% 3 30%
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30. Pensions continued
The amount included in the balance sheet ansing from the Group’s obligations in respect of its defined
benefit scherme 1s os follows

2010 2009
Expected Expected
rate of Falr value rate of  Faur volue
return £'000 return £'000
Scheme assets
Equities 7.50% 11,997 7 70% 12,825
Bonds 5.40% 2,165 4 50% 6.351
Insured annuities 5.40% 6,432 575% 301
Cash 0.50% 568 0 50% 158
Total fair value of assets 21,162 19,635
Present value of defined benefit obligations {25,4464) (23.272)
Deficit In the scheme (4.302) (3.637)
Analysis of the amount charged to operating profit
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Current service cost - -
Past service cost - -
Analysis of the amount charged to other finance costs
2010 2009
£'000 £000
Expected return on pension scheme assets 1,306 974
Interest on pension scheme labiles (1,316) (1.243)
Amount charged to other finance costs Q0) (269)

The cumulative amount of actuanal gains and losses recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income since adoption of IFRS 1s a loss of £2,135,000 (2009 - loss of £529,000)

Analysis of the actuanal (loss)/gain recogrised in the
Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive income

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Actuanal return less expected return on pension scheme assets 40 2,211
Experience gains and losses ansing on the scheme liabilities - -
Changes in assumpticns underlying the present value of the scheme liabilities (1.646) (1.957)
Actuarlal (loss)/gain recognised In the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income (1.606) 254
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30. Pensions confinued
The basis used to determine the return on scheme assets 1s as follows

Equites — 3 50% premium on the 20 year fixed-interest gilt rate of 4 20% less 0 2% for expenses
Bonds — 16 year average redemption yield on sterling corporate bonds of 5 40%

Insured annutties — valued at the scheme discount rate of 5 40%

Cash — UK base rate at 31 December 2010 of 0 5%

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows

2010 2009
£'000 £000
At 1 January 23,272 20,681
Service cost - -
Interest cost 1,316 1,243
Actuanal gains and losses 1,646 1,957
Benefits paid (770) (609)
At 31 Decomber 25,464 23,272
Movements in the farr value of scheme assets were as follows
2010 2009
£'000 £000
At 1 January 19.635 16,459
Expected return on scheme assets 1,306 974
Actuanal gains and losses 40 2,21
Contnbutions by the employer 951 400
Benefits paid (770) (609)
At 31 December 21,162 19.635
The history of expenence adjustments is as fallows
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
£000 €000 £'000 £000 £'000
Present value of defined benefits (25.464) (23,272) (20.681) (22,676) (25.104)
Fair value of scheme assets 21,162 19.635 16,459 20,178 19,397
Deficit in the scheme {4.302) (3.637) (4.222) {2.498) (5.707)
Expenence adustment on
scheme labiiihes
Amount - - 1,861 - -
Percentage of scheme liabilities (%) - - 9% - -
Expenence adjustment on
scheme asseis
Amount 40 2,21 (4,696) (104) 998
Percentage of scheme assets (%) 0% 11% 29% 1% 5%
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30 Pensions continued

31.

66

The estimated amount of contnbutions expected to be paid to the scheme dunng the current financial
year 15 £1,032,000 (2010 - £951,000)

Following the decision for the scheme to be frozen, 1 e closed fo new entrants and to future accrual with
effect from 5 Apnf 1999, formal notice was given fo employees In January 1999 A defined contnbution
pension scheme commenced on 6 Apnl 1999 for all eligible UK employees This scheme was closed on
31 October 2002 and was replaced by a Group stakeholder pension plan

At 31 December 2010, contributions of £73,000 (2009 - £30,000) due in respect of the current reporting
period had not been paid over to the UK schemes

In the United States there was a provision for payments info the money purchase scheme of £103,000
(2009 - £82,000) at 31 December 2010

Financtal instruments

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted., ncluding the catena for recognition, the
basis of measurement and the basis on which ncome and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class
of financial asset, financial lakility and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements

Financial risk management objechives

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going
concemns while maximising the return to stakeholders The capital structure of the Group consists of cash
and cash equivalents, borrowings and equity attrbutable to equity holders, compnising capital, reserves
and retained earnings as disclosed in notes 24 to 26

Credit nsk

The Group's principal financial assets are cash, shortterm deposits and trade receivables The Group's
policy is to place funds on shart-term deposit with highly rated institutions Accounts recevable are
monitared closely and provisions are made for bad and doubtful debts where appropnate The
creditworthiness of custorners is assessed prior to opening new accounts and on a regular basis for
significant custormers The assessment of credit quality 1s outined In note 19

The Group does not have any significant credit nisk exposure 1o any single counterparty or any Group of
counterparties having similar charactenistics

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which is net of impairment
losses, represents the Group’s maximum exposure fo credrt nsk

Foreign currency nsk management

The Group has exposure to foreign currency nsk ansing from s net Investments in and cash flows from
overseas subsidianes and cssociates s policy in managing this nsk 1s to maintain appropnate levels of net
assets in the overseas companies and utilise foreign currency forward contracts The most significant nsk of
exposure to foreign currency anses from the US Dollar sales made by the UK subsidiary fo the US subsidiary
The Group's net exposure to US Dollar cash flows for the coming year 1s not expected to be significant

due to a natural hedged position Subsequent to the year end the Group placed forward contracts for
Canadian Dollars and Euros, and an average rate ophon in US Dollars to manage the nsk ansing from the
retranslation of profit made in the USA
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Financial instruments continued
The Group enters info dervative fransactions only fo manage exposure arsing frem s underlying
businesses No speculative dervative contracts are entered into

The Group undertakes certain trading transactions denominated m foreign currencies Hence. exposures
fo exchange rate fluctuations anse Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy
parameters utlising forward foreign exchange contracts when considered appropriate

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities at the reporting date are as follows

Liabilthes Assets
2010 2009 2010 2009
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Euro 91 92 593 602
Us boliar 3,420 1,877 7,789 5,210
Canadian Dollar - - 336 85
Swedish Krona 5 1 74 52
Norwegian Krone - - a3 118

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Group 1s manly exposed to the currencies of Euro, US Dollar, Canadian Dollar, Swedish Krona and
Norwegian Krone

The following table details the Group’s sensitmvity to a 10% increase and decrease in Sterling aganst the
relevant foreign currencies 10% 1s the sensitvity rate which represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary tems and adjusts therr translation at the year end for o 10%
change In foreign currency rates A negative number below indicates a decrease in profit and other equity
where Sterhng strengthens 10% against the relevant currency For a 10% weakening of Sterling agamnst the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit and other equity

Euro US Dollar Canadian Dollar  Swedish Kronag  Norwegian Krone
impact impact mpact impact impact

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Profit

or loss (46) (46) 126 19 (31) (&) (7 (5) (8) (10
Other

equity - - {523) (322) - - - - - -

Liquidity nsk management

Ultimate responsibility for iguidity nsk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an
appropnate lquidity nsk management framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium
and long-term funding and iquidity management requirements The Group manages quidity nsk by
maintaining adequaie reserves and banking facilihes, by monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturty profiles of financtal assels and labilities
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Financial instruments continued
Liquidity and interest nsk tables

The following fables detall the Group's expected maturity for its assets and habilities The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets and habilihies
including interest that will be eamed on those assets except where the Group anticipates that the cash

fiow will occur in a different pencd

Weighted Non-
average financial
effeclive lLess than Over assets/f
interest rate 1 month 1-3 months 3 months (liablilitles) Total
At 31 December 2010 % £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Financial assets - 4,300 2,291 - - 6,591
Other assets - - - - 21,145 21.145
Cash and cash equivalents 0.5% 6,249 - - - 6,249
Total assets 10,549 2,291 - 21,145 33,985
Shareholders’ funds - - - - (22,122) (22,122)
Financial iabilhes - (5.754) (1.071) €379) - €7.204)
Other habilities - - - €357) - (357)
Pension scheme deficit - - - - (4.302) (4.302)
Total liabilities and
shareholders’ funds (5.754) (1.071) (736) (26,424) (33,985)
Cumulative gap 4,795 6.015 5,279 - -
Weighted Non-
average financal
effective  Less than Over assets/
interest rate 1 month 1-3 months 3 months  (labilities) Total
At 31 December 2009 % £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financtal assets - 4,373 1.977 - - 6,350
Other assets - - - - 19,09 192.091
Cash and cash equivalents 05% 5,439 - - - 5,439
Total assets 2.812 1,977 - 19.091 30,880
Shareholders’ funds - - - - (20,486) (20.486)
Borrowings 4% (24) (48) (975) - (1.047)
Financial iabilihes - (3.910) (1.055) (163) - (5.128)
Other labilhies - - - (582) - (582)
Pension scheme deficrt - - - - (3.637) (3.637)
Total labiities and
shareholders’ funds (3.934) (1.103) {1.720) (24.123) (30,880)
Cumulative gap 5,878 6,752 5,032 - -

The following tables detall the Group’s remaining centractual matunty for its nendernvative financial
hakilies The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial labilties
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows The Group expects to meet tts abligations in excess of cash held from operating
cash flows and proceeds of matunng financial assets The Group 1s not significantly exposed at the year

end fo interest rate risk
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31. Financial instruments continued

Welghted

average Non-

effective Less than Over financlal
interest rate 1 month 1-3months 3 months llabilities Total
% £000 €000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade and other payables - 5,784 1,071 379 - 7,204
Tax habilhes - - - 300 - 300
Pension scheme deficit - - - - 4,302 4,302
Grant received - - - 57 - 57
At 31 December 2010 5,754 1,071 736 4,302 11.863

Weighted

average Non-

effective  Less than Over financial
interest rate 1 month 1-3 months 3 months liabihties Total
% £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Trade and other payables - 3.910 1,055 163 - 5128
Tax labilities - - - 508 - 508
Borrowings 4% 24 48 975 - 1.047
Pension scheme deficit - - - - 3,637 3,637
Grant received - - - 74 - 74
At 31 December 2009 3.934 1,103 1,720 3,637 10,394
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32, Share-based payments
Equity-settled share option schemes
The Group operates two shate option schemes far serior managers and Directors

The Group recognised total expenses of £108,000 and £13.000 reloted to equity share-based payment
transactions in 2010 and 2009 respectively

a) The Portmewon 2002 Share Option Scheme

Options are exercisable at a pnce equal fo the average guoted market prce of the Company’s shares on
the three trading days pnor to the date of the grant The vesting penod is three years If the options remain
unexercised after a penod of between four and ten years from the date of grant the options expire

Details of the share options outstanding dunng the year are as follows

2010 2009
Welghted Weighted
average average
Number exercise Nurnber exercise
of share price of share price
optlons £ options £
Cutstanding at 1 January 533,000 2,733 404,199 2923
Granted during the year 195,000 3.745 199,000 1975
Lapsed during the year - - (70,199) 1675
Surrendered durnng the year - - - -
Exercised dunng the year (82,856) 3.450 - -
Outstanding at 31 December 645,144 2.947 533.000 2733
Exercisable at 31 December 147,144 3.450 - -

The options outstanding at 31 December 2010 had a weighted average remaining contractual Iife of

5 7 years (2009 - 4 5 years) In 2010, options were granted on 29 March The aggregate of the estmated
farr value of those ophions 1s £211,958 In 2009, options were granted on 28 May The aggregote of the
estimated farr value of those options I1s £54,874

The mnputs into the Black-Scholes pricing model are as follows

2010 2009
Wetghled average share pnce at date of grant £3.950 £1 925
Weighted average exercise price £3.745 £1 975
Expected volahlity 36% 33%
Expected Iife 6.5 years 6 5 years
Risk-free rate 3.33% 3 96%
Expected dvidend rate 4.00% 7 64%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the histoncal volahlity over the previous 6 5 years The
expected hfe used in the model assumes that the ophons will be exercised on average halfway through
the pencd dunng which they can be exercised
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32. Share-based payments continued
b) The Portmeirion Group 2010 Deferred Incentive Share Option Plan
Ophons are granted to Executive Directors in a year over shares with a market value not exceeding 20%
of the gross iIncentive earned by the relevant employee in respect of the previous financial year Options
are exercisable at €1 per individual as the iotal exercise price The vesting penod 1s three years If the
options remain unexercised after a penod of three years and three months from the date of grant the
options expire

Details of the share options outstanding dunng the year are as follows

2010 2009

Total Total

Number exercise Number exercise

of share price of share price

options £ ophons £

Qutstanding at 1 January - - - -
Granted during the year 28,352 £3 - -
Lapsed dunng the year - - - -
Surrendered dunng the year - - - -
Exercised durnng the year - - - -
OQOutstanding at 31 December 28,352 £3 - -
Exercisable at 31 December - - - -

The options cutstanding at 31 December 2010 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of
2 6 years (2009 - nil) In 2010, options were granted on 27 May The aggregate of the estimated farr value
of those options 1s £101,646

The inputs into the Black-Scholes pncing model are as follows

2010 2009
Weighted average share pnce at date of grant £4.050 -
Weighted average exercise price Nil -
Expected volatiity 47% -
Expected Iife 3.125 years -
Risk-free rate 1.85% -
Expected dividend rate 3.90% -

Expected volahity was determined by calculating the histoncal volahiity over the previous 3 125 years
The expected life used in the model assumes that the options will be exercised on average halfway
through the penod during which they can be exercised
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2010 2009

Notes £000 £000 £000 £'000
Fixed assels
Investments in subsidiary undertakings c 1,485 1,455
Curmrent assets
Cash a -
Debftors alf of which fall due aofter more than one year d 10,911 10.911
Creditors amounts falkng due within one year 2] (2.638) (3 424)
Nat current assets 8,277 7.487
Net assets 9,732 8,942
Capltal and reserves
Called up share capifal f 528 528
Share premium account f 4,951 4,820
Other reserves f 197 197
Treasury shares f (1.047) ¢1.202)
Share-based payment reseve f 267 159
Retaned earnings f 4,836 4,440
Shareholders’ funds 9,732 8,942

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised fer issue on 22 March

2011 They were signed on s behalf by

L.F Bryan

Directo
B.W.J.Phlillps} rectons

- o
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Company Reconciliation of Movements in
Shareholders’ Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2010 2010

2009

£000 £'000

Opening balance 8,942 8,499
Profit for the year 2,003 1,888
Dividends paid (1.607) (1.458)
Shares 1ssued under employee share schemes 286 -
Increase in share-based payment reserve 108 13
Closing balance 9,732 8,942

Equity compnses share capital, share premium, equity reserves, tfreasury shares and retained earnings
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Sigmficant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act
2006 They have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable
United Kingdom Accounting Standards and law The principal accounhng policies are summansed
below They have all been applied consistently throughout the year and the preceding year

Investments
Fixed asset investments in subsidianes and associaies are shown at cost less provision for impairment

Profit for the year

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has elected not to present its own
profit and loss account for the year The Company reported a profit for the financial year of £2,003,.000
{2009 - £1,888,000) The auditors’ remuneration for audit and other services is disclosed in note 9 to the
consclidated financial statements

Fixed asset investment

Subsidiary undertaking
2070 2009
£000 £'000
30,100 (2009 - 30,000) ordinary shares of £1 each in Portmeinon Group
UK Limited representing 100% of the 1ssued share capital af cost 1,455 47
Nil (2009 - 100) ordinary shares of no par value In Naugatuck
Tnangle Corporation representing 100% of the 1ssued share capital at cost - 1,408
1,455 1,455

As part of a Group restructunng in the year, the shareholding in Naugatuck Tnangle Corporation was
exchanged for an additional 100 ordinary shares in Portmeinon Group UK Limited Porimeinon Group
UK Limrted subsequently contnbuted this holding to Portmeirion Enterprises Limited in exchange for an
additional 100 shares 1ssued by that company Baoth of these transfers were enacted at book value
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C.

Fixed asset investment continued
At 31 December 2010 the Company had the following subsidiary and associated undertakings

Country of operahon
and incorporation Nature of business

Subsidiary undertakings

Portmeiron Group UK Limrted England and Wales  Pottery manufacturer, marketing and
distnbuhon of pottery and accessories

Portmeinion Finance Limited England ond Wales  Dormant

Portmeinon Enterprises Limited* England and Wales  Intermediate holding Company

Portmetnion Distnbution Limited* England and Wales  Dormant

Portmeinon Services Limited™* England and Wales  Dormant

Portmeinon Group USA, Inc USA Marketing and distnbution of pohtery and

(formerly Naugatuck Tnangle accessories

Corporation)

Portmeinon Group Designs, LLC* USA Domant

Associaled undertakings

Portmernion Canada inc Canada Marketing and distnbution of pottery and
accessones
Furleng Mills bmited England and Wales  Suppliers ond millers of clay

The companies are incorporated In England and Wales and registered in England and Wales except
where stated The share capital of all subsidiary undertakings consists solely of ordinary shares The
Company holds 100% of the share capital of all subsicianes, 50% of the ordinary share capital of
Portmeinon Canada Inc and 27 58% of the ordinary share capital of Fulong Mills Limited Furlong Mills
Limited supplies Portmeinon Group UK Limited with all of its clay raw maienals

* Wholly owned by Portmeirion Group UK Limited
T Wholly owned by Portmerrion Enterpnses Limited
* Wholly owned by Portmetrnion Group USA, Inc

Debtors

2010 2009
£'000 £°000

Loans owed by subsidiary undertakings falling due after more than one year
Portmeinon Group UK Limited 10,148 10,146
Portrmeinon Enterpnses Limited 705 705
Portmeinon Distriibuhion Limited 60 60
10,911 10,911
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e  Credifors
2010 2009
£'000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertaking, Portmeinon Group UK Limited 2,563 3,323
Other taxation and social secunty 6 6
Other creditors 43 43
Corporation tax 26 52
2.638 3,424
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Share capital, share premium account and reserves
Details of share capifal are disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements

The movements on the share premium account and other reserves are shown below

Share-
Share based
premium Cther Treasury  payment Retained
account reserves shares reserve earnings
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2009 4,820 197 (1.202) 1464 4,010
Profit for the financial year - - - - 1.888
Dividends paid - - - - (1.458)
Increase in share-based payment reserve - - - 13 -
At 1 January 2010 4,820 197 (1.202) 159 4,440
Profit for the financial year - - - - 2,003
Dividends paid - - - - (1.607)
Increase in share-based payment reserve - - - 108 -
Share 1ssued under employee share schemes 131 - 165 - -
At 31 December 2010 4,951 197 (1.047) 267 4,836

Related party transachions

Dunng 2010 net transactions totalling £760,000 were debited (2009 - £390,000 debited) fo the
intercompany account with the Company’s subsidiary, Portmernon Group UK Limited These transactions
represented payments and receipts made on behalf of the Company by Portmeinon Group UK bimited. a
tax adjustment, an intergroup dvidend and the transfer of the share-based payment reserve

The outstanding balances with subsidiary undertakings at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009
are shown in notes d and e above The loans owed by subsidiary undertckings are not considered to be
repayable within one year

No balances were owed 1o or from the Company by associated underfakings
Contingent liabilities

The Company 1s a party fo the landlord guarantee referred to in note 28 and the finance liability
disclosed in note 21




Five Year Summary

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT INFORMATION
Years ended 31 December

Portmeirion Group PLC

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Revenue 28,422 32,017 31,838 43,165 51,243
Profit before tax 2,687 4,419 1,090 3718 8,249
Tax (938) (1.393) (515) (1,265) (1,774)
Profit attributable to equity holders 1.749 3.026 575 2,453 3.475
Earnings per share 17 81p 3077p 581p 24 73p 34.91p
Dwidends paid and proposed per share 14 00p 14 70p 14 70p 15 80p 17.40p
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION
At 31 December
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Assets employed
Non-current assets 9.390 8,767 8,041 9,622 10,379
Current assets 18,477 18,919 20,651 21,258 23,606
Current iabilities (5.574) (4.608) 4.318) (5.920) (7.504)
Non-current labilities (5.707) (2.498) (4.328) (4.474) (4.359)
16,586 20,580 20,048 20,4864 22,122
Financed by
Called up share capital 523 528 528 528 528
Share premium account and reserves 16,063 20,052 19.520 19,958 21,594
16,586 20,580 20,048 20,486 22,122
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Company Information

Board of Drectors

Richard J Steele BCOM FCA CTA
Lawrence F Bryan BA

Michoel Haynes MCIM

Brett WJ Philips BSc ACA
Barbara Thomas Judge BA JD
Jaris Kong BSc OBE

Secretary
Brett WJ Philips BSc ACA

Registered Office and Number
London Road

Stoke-on-Trent

ST4 7Qa

Tel  +44 (0) 1782 744723

Fax  +44 (0) 1782 744061
wWww portmeirnongroup com
Registered number 124842

Auditors

Mazars LLP

45 Church Street
Birmingham B3 2RT

Nominated Adwiser and Stockbroker
Seyrmour Pierce Limited

20 Old Bailey

London EC4M 7EN

Registrars
Capita Registrars
The Registry
34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham
Kent BR3 47U
Tel 0871 664 0300° (UK)

+44 () 208 639 3399 (Outside UK)
Fax  +44 (0) 208 639 2220
Email ssd@capitaregistrars com
www capitaregistrars com

* Calls cost 10p per rminute plus network extras

Lines open between 8 30 am and 5 30 pm,
Monday-Fnday excl bank holidays
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Non-executive Charrman

Chief Executive

Group Sales & Marketing Director
Group Finance Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director

Solicitors

Pinsent Masons LLP
3 Colmore Circus
Birmingham B4 6BH

KJD Freeth LLP
Churchill House
Regent Road
Stoke-on-Trent ST1 3R&

Financial PR Advisers

Pelham Bell Pothinger

5th Floor, Holborn Gate

330 High Holborn

London WC1V 7QD

Tel +44 (Q) 20 7861 3232

Fax +44 (0) 20 7861 3233

Emall pr@pelhambelipotiinger co uk




Financial Calendar

Portmerrion Group PLC

Annual General Maeﬂng Moy
Interim Report August
Dividends

Intenm announced August
Paid October
Final announced March
Paid May
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Factory Shops and Stockists

UK Factory Shops

Bndgend Shop
McArthurGlen

Unit 71, Designer Outlet
The Derwen, Bridgend
South Wales

CF32 9sU

Tel +44 (0)1656 669038

Cheshire Oaks Shop

Unit 72, Cheshire Oaks Designer QOutlet
Kinsey Road

Ellesmere Port

Cheshire

CHé&5 9JJ

Tel +44 (0)151 3551538

Colne Shop ‘Boundary MilI"
Vivary Way

Colne

Lancashire

BBS INW

Tel +44 (0)1282 856200

East Midlands Shop

Urit 12a, East Midlands Designer Qutlet
Mansfield Road

South Normanton

Derbyshire

DESS 2JW

Tel +44 (01773 545375

Longton, King Street Shop
473 King Street

Longton

Staffordshire

ST3 1EU

Tel +44 (0)1782 326661

Worldwide Stockists

Stoke Shop

London Road
Stoke-on-Trent
Staffordshire

ST47@Q

Tel +44 (0)1782 411756

Street Shop

Clarks Village

Farm Road

Street

Somerset

BA16 0BB

Tel +44 (0)1458 446703

Swindon Shop ‘At Home’
McArthurGlen, Great Western Village
Kemble Drive

Swindon

Wiltshire

SN2 2DY

Tel +44 (0)1793 422910

Trentham Shop

Unit 230, Trentham Retal Village
Trentham

Staffordshire

5T4 BAX

Tel +44 (0)1782 657828

Walsall Shop ‘Boundary Mill
Bentley Mill Way

Walsall

West Midlands

WS2 OLE

Tel +44 (0)1922 618200

Details of worldwide stockists can be found on our website www portmeinongroup com

Portmeinon Group Patterns

Details of Portmeinon Group patterns are shown on pages 4 to 7 Porimeinon’s The World of Enc Carle -

The Very Hungry Caterpillar™ (@ Enc Carle LLC) 1s produced under licence from Chonon fights Limited

Spode’s Paddington Bear™ range and Portmeinon’s The Snowman™ (® Snowman Enterprises Lmited) range
are produced under hicence from The Copynghts Group Lid Paddington Bear™, Paddington™ and PB™ are
frade marks of Puddington and Company Ltd A number of Pimpernel designs are icensed from third parties
including Le Fleunste (© Fabnce De Villeneuve Studia) from Courtney Dawvis Inc The Party On design on the
Royal Worcester mug and giftbox shown on page 3 1s the copynight of Nel Whatmore, icensed through Konnect




Portmeirion Group PLC

This dogument is printed on Revive 50 50 Slik o recycled paper contalning 50% recycled waste and 50% virgin fibre and manufactured ot
a miil certified with 1SC 14001 ervironmental management standard

The pulp used In this product is bleached using an Elemental Chionne Free (ECF) process




Portmeirion Group PLC
London Road
Sioke-on-Trent

sT4 7QQ

Tel +44 (0) 1782 744721
Fax +44 (0) 1782 744061

www portmeinongroup com




